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This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available on the Company’s website at
www.yff.com (the “Company Website”).

Shareholders who have chosen or have been deemed consented to receive the corporate
communications of the Company (the “Corporate Communications”) via the Company Website
and who for any reason have difficulty in receiving or gaining access to the annual report posted on
the Company Website will promptly upon request be sent the annual report in printed form free of
charge.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of the means of receipt (either in printed form or
via the Company Website) of Corporate Communications.

Shareholders may send their request to receive the annual report in printed form, and/or to change
their choice of the means of receipt of Corporate Communications by notice in writing to the share
registrar of the Company, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17M Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by sending an email to the share
registrar of the Company at yunfeng.ecom@computershare.com.hk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

OVERVIEW

During the Year, COVID-19 continued to impact
global financial markets. Facing the challenges and
opportunities during the recovery, the Group effectively
executed its business plan and actively pursued
appropriate opportunities to broaden revenue streams
and enhance shareholder value under the current market
conditions. The Group captured the opportunities
arising from the recovery to achieve breakthroughs and
sustainable development in its business.

The Group’s sources of revenue include life insurance
premium income and other financial businesses
including subscription fees and management fees for
products launched by the Group, platform fees for
distribution of third-parties products, administration
fee for employees stock ownership plan management
services and brokerage commission income etc. For
the Year, the Group’s revenue amounted to HK$9,461
million, representing an increase of 11% compared to
that of HK$8,521 million for the year 2021. The revenue
included HK$9,428 million premiums and fee income,
representing an increase of 11% compared to that of
HK$8,479 million for the year 2021, and HK$33 million
of income from other financial services, representing
an decrease of 22% compared to that of HK$43 million
for the year 2021. The adjusted operating profit was
approximately HK$934 million, representing an increase
of 14% compared to that of HK$818 million for the
year 2021. The Group’s consolidated loss amounted
to HK$111 million compared to the consolidated profit
of HK$793 million for the year 2021. The net loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
amounted to HK$256 million compared to a net profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of HK$513 million for the Prior Year. The net loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the Year was mainly due to the Group’s investments
losses as a result of adverse market conditions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS
REVIEW

The financial highlights of the Group were as follows:
Consolidated financial result analysis

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

EEENWEDN

REUBRR

FEEFRAERMBRENOT :
REMBRRESN
BE+-A=+—HULFE BBEET

2022 2021 Change %
—EF-C- —E-—F 21 %
Income N
Premiums and fee income RERERBA 9,428 8,479 11
(Loss)/profit after taxation BREL& (BE) uF (111) 793 N/AF 38 A
Net (loss)/profit attributable to B A 1L (B58)
the owners & R R ER (256) 513 N/AT3E A
Basic (loss)/earnings per share SREX (F58) EF
(HK$) (Note 1) (&) (Brat1) (0.07) 0.13 N/AT i A
Final dividend proposed per EEoRAPERKE
share - - N/AT 8
At 31 December, HK$ million R+=-ZBF=+—H BEET
2022 2021 Change %
—E-C —E-—F #21 %
Total assets BEEMALE 102,870 98,474 4
Total equity FEREER 14,794 19,891 (26)
Owner’s equity RNy 9,983 13,724 27)
Owner’s equity per share (HK$) #HEEASKREZR CBx)
(Note 2) (Haz2) 2.58 3.55 27)
Note 1: The denominator is weighted average number of HaT NEAERATLBERIIMEFLHE -

ordinary shares of the Company.

Note 2: The denominator is total issued shares as of 31

December of the respective years.

EHOREBERAT
—B-—EEH
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS
REVIEW (Continued)

Consolidated financial result analysis (Continued)

Analysis on profit for the year, HK$ million

REMBRE (&)

REMBRRON (&
rEEBATH - BEET

2022 2021 Change %
—E-C — == #1 %
YF Life segment operating EBRByHKE R
profit 1,054 993 6
Other financial services Hith&®MBEEMAR D
and corporate segment REEE
operating loss (120) (175) (31)
Total operating profit KeERREEE 934 818 14
Adjust for the following profit or FHEUTEZREHR
loss and expenses impact: -7
- Investment (loss)/income, - BE (BB W& -
fair value changes of risk EBREBRITETIA
hedging derivatives and WARBEZE
fair value change and RELBENAR
impairment of certain BEZBNREE
investments (654) 77 N/AT i A
- Staff share award - BIRMDEBEE

amortisation expense s - 8 N/AT3E A
- Finance costs (Note 1) —BE A (HEET) (145) (125) 16
- One-off adjustments (Note 2)  — — R MK (Ff:22) (26) ) 13 timesf&
- Consolidation adjustments - &A% (HiE3)

(Note 3) (220) 16 N/ATER
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BE) BEF (111) 792 N/ATIE A
Less: non-controlling interests  J& - JE1E= IR AE 2% (145) (279) (48)
Net (loss)/profit attributable to wAE AEL (BE)

the owners BREE (256) 513 N/AT3E A

Note 1: The amount includes bank interest expenses and other HtaEt : ZEEARAEEEMRENMEELRE
finance expenses incurred for the capital required in SHRTHNEERNEMIKER -
the Group’s strategic investment.

Note 2: One-off adjustments represent the impact of Kiato : — AR EMBEEBERANFME
professional consultancy fees incurred for ENEEZRAEANSE -
non-recurring project expense.

Note 3: The consolidation adjustments represent the financial B3 : EHARERBEERRBEENUBTE -
impact arising from the acquisition of YF Life.

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS HREMBRE (&)
REVIEW (Continued)
Changes in owner’s equity BEAEZEH
HK$ million HEETT

2022 2021

—Eg=-= —E=—

Balance at 1 January — B —HZ&8%E 19,891 19,342
Share based payment transaction URDEZAGEEERNRZ S - 8)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BB &R (111) 793
Other comprehensive income and others Hit2E UKz R E 4 (4,986) (236)
Balance at 31 December +ZRA=1+—HZ&8% 14,794 19,891
Attributable to: bR
- equity shareholders of the Company - RPBEERER 9,983 13,724
- non-controlling interests - R ES 4,811 6,167
Total equity R 14,794 19,891

The Group’s total shareholders’ equity amounted to
approximately HK$14,794 million as at 31 December
2022 as compared to the total shareholders’ equity
of HK$19,891 million reported at the end of last year.
The decrease is mainly due to fair value change and
impairment loss of investment assets.

INSURANCE BUSINESS REVIEW

To facilitate a more thorough and comprehensive review
of the insurance business, YF Life, the related financial
data excludes the fair value accounting adjustments
made on the acquisition. Management considers the full
year operation and financial data excluding fair value
accounting adjustments made on YF Life acquisition and
intragroup transaction elimination with other business
segment of the Group is able to provide reader with
more relevant information on the business performance
of the insurance business segment operating results.

EHOREBERAT
—B-—EEH
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

OVERVIEW

During the year 2022, our insurance business remained
as authorized insurer licensed to carry on life and
annuity, linked long term, permanent health, and
retirement scheme management long term insurance
businesses in Hong Kong. It also operates in Macao
through a branch office and is licensed to sell life
insurance products in Macao.

Our insurance business division maintained diversified
product suite includes four flagship products: (i) the
“FLEXI-ULife Prime Saver”, an enhanced universal life
insurance plan; (ii) the “MY Lifetime Annuity”, a plan
providing guaranteed lifetime annuity income to act
as a safety net during the customer’s retirement; (iii)
the “Infinity Saver 3”, an insurance savings plan to
accumulate capital with potentially higher return; and
(iv) the “PrimeHealth” series which are critical illness
products covering a wide range of illnesses.

The tied agency force consisted of approximately 3,204
(2021: 3,462) agents in Hong Kong and Macao as of 31
December 2022. In addition to the tied agency force, we
also utilise brokers and agency intermediaries as well
as banks and other financial institutions to distribute
insurance products. As of 31 December 2022, the
insurance business division has approximately 511
(2021: 568) employees and more than 529,000 (2021:
523,000) in-force individual policies.

During 2022, our insurance division continues to
develop its tied agency, brokerage and agency
intermediary and bancassurance distribution channels
to increase penetration in the market, to broaden its
access to potential customers and to meet the evolving
preferences of existing customers. Tied agency is
the most significant distribution channel in terms of
premium and fee income contribution and we plan to
continue to steadily grow its tied agency force. We also
seek to expand our brokerage and agency intermediary
distribution channel to serve sophisticated customers
who we believe are more receptive to independent
advice. For bancassurance distribution channel, we will
aim to establish new partnerships with suitable banks
and financial institutions. Furthermore, our insurance
division has been exploring to re-formulate overall
strategy of online sales channel.

M=

R-ZBZZF -EREBEZFE RMAOA
ERXgEEBRESShIFEl BEEAR
ik KARERBR IR KT EEERARF
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BENEEEED  ((BRBEITERASERS
2 SER-EEREEASKE (/B
REFE ER-—EATFRAHBRMR
BHNASFESRAGE . (i) EHRERRFS
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW (Continued)
Future development in the insurance business

In year 2023 and beyond, our group will continue to
develop its tied agency, brokerage and bancassurance
distribution channels to increase penetration in the
market, to broaden its access to potential customers
and to meet the evolving preferences of existing
customers. Tied agency is our significant distribution
channel in terms of premium and fee income
contribution, and we plan to continue to steadily
grow the tied agency force. We will also continue to
expand our brokerage distribution channel to serve
sophisticated customers who we believe are more
receptive to independent advice. In order to expand
the bancassurance distribution channel, we will aim
to establish new partnerships with suitable banks and
financial institutions. Furthermore, we aim to develop
innovative products to meet the evolving needs of
our customers and enhance the concept of “product
+ service” to provide customers with comprehensive
solutions. Technology empowerment is also a core
concept of our group, and we will continue to improve
the information capability and leverage the usage
of digital platforms to match the preferences of the
customers and improving operational efficiency.

THEMEBERAT
—Eo—FEg

EEENWEDN
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

TOTAL PREMIUM AND FEE INCOME

Total premium and fee income (“TPI”) measures its
business volumes by referring to the total TPI reported
under the 10. TPI consists of full amount of single
premium, first year regular premium and renewal regular
premium before reinsurance, and includes deposits and
contributions for contracts. In preparing the financial
statements in accordance with HKFRS, YF Life chooses
to unbundle the deposit component of insurance
contracts from TPl and such deposit component is
credited directly to the policyholders’ deposit upon
receipt. Therefore, the revenue recognized in the
financial statements prepared under HKFRS is less than
TPI before intra-group transaction eliminations.

RENBERARARE

RENERRAREBB S E R ERDER
ENRENEARANBERGFEHAEKS -
REREAWALEEEERIREZE B
FHHARBNBRZANBERDBRE - &
FERHEBNHT - RE(E RV BREER) R
T BRRE  BEERREEXRERER
WARDFRIBEBNREHD  MEER
EWMORBBREEFTARESBEANER
H it - R IE CE B B 35 3R 5 2 B 4% %I /Y B 75
BERPEEANFRZEEAEIHWRER
REREHWBAREE -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+=-A=+—HLFE

2022 2021
—EgE-F —E-—5F
HK$ million HK$ million
& #ET B &E T
Total premium and fee income reported RERBEEFRABREHNRER
under 10 BRKAZE 11,446 11,147
Less: Premium deposits separated out B RREBERTPEBES M
from insurance contracts and REFBESNEABRAER
recognition of fee income (2,016) (2,667)
Premium and fee income recognized in EEME B BREER DU
the income statements under HKFRS mRPEINRERERKA 9,430 8,480
Management considers TPl as one of the important EEBIAARENEARNANEGEEAERLK

measures of the Group’s operating performance and
believe they are frequently used by analysts, investors
and other interested parties in the evaluation of
insurance companies. The management also uses TPI
as an additional measurement tool for the purposes
of business decision-making. TPl is not a measure of
operating performance under HKFRS and should not
be considered as a substitute for, or superior to, profit
before tax in accordance with HKFRS.

10
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS VOLUME

The tables below set forth the TPl of the Insurance
business by (i) geographical region, (ii) distribution
channel and (iii) product type based on internal records.

() By geographical region

EEENWEDN

XKE

TRENAIBLHZOWEEIT ()2 HR
BA)VERBERBIN T REEBENRERE
FAUR #8258 -

() ®EESE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

2022 2021
—E-CHF —E-—F
HK$ million % HK$ million %
BEETT BEET
Hong Kong &8 6,978 61 7,024 63
Macao B FS 4,468 39 4,123 37
11,446 100 11,147 100

(ii) By distribution channel

(i) BoERE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-BL%E

2022 2021
—EZCE —E-FF
HK$ million HK$ million
EEET EE#ET
Hong Kong Macao Total Hong Kong Macao Total
BB BP9 CL BB 2P GH
Tied agency BRAE 4,736 1,256 5,992 4,663 1,260 5,923
Brokers and non-tied £LAMEBR
agency RE 1,643 1,114 2,757 1,766 694 2,460
Banks and other BOME SR
financial institution ~ ##& 599 2,098 2,697 595 2,169 2,764
6,978 4,468 11,446 7,024 4,123 11,147
EERESHEBERAT
TEITFFR 11



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFNWR DN

BUSINESS VOLUME (Continued) E$S-¢-))

(iii) By product type (iii) ZRERER

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-BL%E

2022 2021
—E-CHE —E--F
HK$ million HK$ million
EEET BEET
Hong Kong Macao Total Hong Kong Macao Total
i R At BB B P CH
Regular premium HERE
- First year -8 748 1,619 2,367 793 1,623 2,416
Regular premium HARE
- Renewal —EH 5,803 2,740 8,543 5,749 2,327 8,076
Single premium BARE 424 106 530 478 171 649
Fee income ERKBA 3 3 6 4 2 6
6,978 4,468 11,446 7,024 4,123 11,147
EMBEDDED VALUE AND VALUE OF NEW RNEBENFXKEE

BUSINESS

The Embedded Value method is a commonly adopted
alternative method of measuring the value and
profitability of a life insurance company. Embedded
Value is an actuarially determined estimate of the
economic value of a life insurance business based on
a particular set of assumptions as to future experience,
excluding any economic value attributable to future
new business. Value of New Business represents an
actuarially determined estimate of the economic value
arising from new life insurance business issued in the
relevant 12-month period.

We adopted a traditional deterministic discounted
cash flow methodology to determine the components
of embedded value. This methodology makes implicit
allowance for the time value of options and guarantees
and other risks associated with the realisation of the
expected future distributable earnings through the use
of a risk adjusted discount rate and is consistent with
the industry practice in the market.

12

NEBEERFTEASRRBLAREBEEMAETR
REINERERST Z RSEERERY XK
RERN-—ABERRNVNBEEBRENASR
PREBNEEEE TSRRMEBNEM
KEEBE HEBREERETHERBI12EAH
BRABTHHIASRBEEEENEEEE
B EBEMET

EMRAESNEELERRERNEBERTE
WEEBENARSD - ZA EEBERRR
ABRUERR . fHENERNEBEAENURK
B AT R 3R AT o B Wk a5 AR B 9 H At &L B 5t
RASER LETSITEEN - -

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2022



Management Discussion and Analysis

EMBEDDED VALUE AND VALUE OF NEW
BUSINESS (Continued)

The embedded value of the insurance business as at
31 December 2022 is HK$20,587 million (31 December
2021: HK$18,061 million) with breakdown as below.

HK$ million

31 December

EEENWEDN

NEBEMMEBEE @)

BE-ZZ--F+ZHA=+—H RBEE®
HAEEEB20587EBT(ZE-—F+=
B=+—H :180.61E#Bx) ' 15T -
BEEET

31 December

2022 2021 Change %
—E-C —EC-—-F
+=ZA=+-8 +ZA=+-H 21 %
Adjusted Net Worth (“ANW?”) (note 1) &R FE (K1) 8,942 5,610 59
Value of in-force (“VIF”) business after BXEBMBRE R K 2%

CoC (note 2) WEE (#fi22) 11,645 12,451 6)

Embedded value NEEBE 20,587 18,061 14
Note 1: The ANW represents the net asset value on Hong Kong Hatt : KARFEIETEEBELITEEZFNEE

statutory basis, with marked-to-market adjustment
to certain assets. The ANW change is mainly due to
the decrease in liabilities as a result of rising market
interest rate.

Note 2: The VIF is the present value of future estimated
after-tax statutory profits from in-force business,
discounted at the risk discount rate. The VIF drop is
mainly due to the decrease in liabilities mentioned
in Note 1, which implies less reserve release in the
future.

For further detailed discussion and movement analysis
of embedded value of insurance business from 31
December 2021 to 31 December 2022, please refer to
the Embedded Value section.

EHOREBERAT
—B-—EEH

FE EERMRBEBIBHETAE
ERTBRGENERAE SR FER
tEEmmBAE LA EBHAETR
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Wiz BREBEEREBREBRRMS
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

KEY FINANCIAL DATA OF INSURANCE

BUSINESS SEGMENT

The key financial data of insurance segment is
presented under Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) on a full year basis before any fair

REXBIVBETEVHERE

REIBHNEEZMBENERNBBSTRE
EENEAIABEABRNEEARBR ZIE
HA2RATN  RE(BERUBRELED)Z

value adjustment arising from the acquisition accounting >FEHEHB2R
policy and intra-group transaction eliminations:
2022 2021 Change %
—E-- —EZ-F 21 %
HKS$ million HK$ million
HEETT HEET

Income PN
Premiums and fee income RERERKBA

(note a) (Ktita) 9,430 8,480 11
Premiums ceded to reinsurer AHRE (2,721) (2,749) 1)
Net premium and fee income RERERABAFE 6,709 5,731 17
Change in unearned revenue REPUANEEZE

liability (note b) (Ktitb) (1,109) (726) 53
Net earned premium and fee MBRERERRA

income FEE 5,600 5,005 12
Net investment and other REMEMU A FEE

income (note c) (Htite) 3,128 5,018 (38)
Reinsurance commission and BAR A £ F:EF

profit 81 79 3
Benefits, losses and expenses #{Y - BRENEHR
Net policyholders benefit FREAN

(note d) (HtaEd) 1,306 2,506 (48)
Commission and related HEFMEBER

expenses 1,614 1,822 (11)
Deferral and amortisation of EILREBESR A

deferred acquisition costs IEFEFI SR (K atb)

(note b) (1,685) (1,576) 7
Management and other EEREMAX

expenses 971 983 (1)
Change in future policyholder ARREEE AL

benefits (note e) 28 (Mite) 5,846 5,409 8
Profit before taxation BR B4 A1 % A 757 958 (21)
Taxation i 18 52 49 6
Profit after taxation BRFR & )% A 705 909 (22)
Note a: The increase of the balance mainly arises from new Kista : BRENEMTEXRARTERNERA

business and natural growth of in-force portfolio.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

KEY FINANCIAL DATA OF INSURANCE
BUSINESS SEGMENT (Continued)

EEENWEDN

REEXEBSBETEMBEE @)

Note b: The net decrease of the balances (i.e. deferral and Hiatb : BREE (BNIE ZE 1R B2 ¥ 18 AR 2N 1Y IR 3 F0 428 85
amortisation of deferred acquisition costs minus BERBBUASETEE) WRDFHEE
change in unearned revenue liability) is mainly due to EEHAREEEEHESHARD -
decrease in acquisition cost from lower sales.

Note c: The balance includes net investment and other Kizte - HRELREREFENEMBA - RITEF
income, interest income from bank deposits and other RA B WA FEAMLE U A o BREEAVIR
operating income. The decrease of the balance mainly DETEHRERERENREBEMHK -
arises from investment loss from investment-linked
policies.

Note d: The balance includes net claims, policy benefits and Ktatd - HECERRFE REWZMERS
surrenders, interest credited to policyholders’ deposits REFEANERESNENRERSSE
and dividends to policyholders. The decrease of the ARE -BRENHLITEZHEBRERE
balance mainly arises from investment loss passing to REFEAIENERESEBF -
the policyholders of investment-linked policies.

Note e: The balance includes both change in future Ktate : BREEEARREZE ARREBENKRE
policyholders’ benefits to both insurance and EEMNKFEE - BRENENETERH
investment contracts. The increase of the balance RFEBNEREHENERER -
mainly arises from new business and natural growth of
in-force portfolio.

OPERATING PROFIT RERR

For management decision making and internal
performance management purpose, the Group refers
to the operating profit which excludes the investment
income from disposal, fair value changes of risk hedging
derivatives and impairment loss of investments. The
operating profit and profit for the year grew by 6%
to HK$1,054 million and declined by 22% to HK$705
million respectively.

AEBULKERAN (FTEREEEENRE
WH BREHITEIANAABEEHU
FRENBEBR)FAEEERERAI
BHNEBEN AEFELLHEINIER6NE
1054 BT RAFERFBD22% E7.05(8
BT ©

2022 2021 Change %
— = —— —EC-—-F #{ %
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEEET B EET
Operating profit (note 1) BEBER (K1) 1,054 993 6
Adjust for the following profit or FHEBLUTEZNLEA
loss and expenses impact: 22
— Investment income from -BREEENRENK
disposal, fair value changes &= RBREHRITE
of risk hedging derivatives TENAIREESE
and impairment loss of FLURRENBE
investments E5 18 (349) (84) 3 timesf&
Profit for the year A FEREF 705 9209 (22)
Note 1: Operating profit represents profit generated from core Kiat1 - RESHRIER RO ERR T ELEER o
business activities.
ERSRERBRAR
—E-EER 15



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following table sets out the key financial information
with respect to the assets and liabilities employed by
the insurance division before any fair value adjustment
arising from the acquisition accounting policy and
intra-group eliminations.

EEMEE
TRENTRBEARRELENEMAQAE

ERBNEEAMEFA - Rigo WA ER
MEENAENIENHKER -

As at 31 December

R+=-—BA=+—H
2022 2021
fp =S —E-—F
HK$ million HK$ million
BEE T B EE T
Investments RE 67,937 66,869
Cash and deposit BHEMER 3,380 3,788
Deferred acquisition costs IEEREEB KA 17,546 8,781
Other assets HhEE 12,068 9,735
Total assets EEHAT 100,931 89,173
Insurance contract provisions RiEEEEES 77,406 63,309
Investment contract liabilities REEREE 5,518 4,857
Other payables H i P&+ 518 5,939 5,173
Total liabilities EEHE 88,863 73,339
Net assets EEZFE 12,068 15,834

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,
debt securities, mortgage loans, equity securities and
unit trusts and investment policyholder plans related
securities are approximately 76%, 9%, 4% and 11% of
the total investments respectively. As at 31 December
2022, 96.8% (2021: 95.1%) of the debt securities are
investment grade rated (i.e. BBB- or above) by reputable
credit rating agencies. As at 31 December 2022, 89.3%
(2021: 81.2%) of the mortgage loans are investment
grade rated (i.e. BBB- or above) as assessed by internal
rating analysis with the support from external investment
manager using similar credit rating methodology from
reputable credit rating agencies.
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F+-—A=+-—H BEXIFEH EKHFER-
EEESF BUEARREREREE AE
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4% R1IM1% - BE-_ZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—
H>96.8% (ZE=-—F :95.1%) WEKFE
SHEERTFNERIRNEBTARERR
(BPBBB-m LA k) e BZE-ZE -+ =8
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INVESTMENT ASSETS

The table below sets forth the asset allocation of
the investment portfolio (excluding unit trusts and
investment policyholder plans related securities) of
the insurance division which the Company uses to
monitor the performance of the investment portfolio.
The debt securities and mortgage loans were reported
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment while equity securities and unit trusts and
investment policyholder plans related securities were
reported at fair value.

EEENWEDN

REEE

TREINTRRIBREAS (TEEBEEN
ERARREREFBAENEEZES) B
BENE  ARABLEZEREESHNEN -
EBEFNERERZEAR R EHENR
SHRESR MESESMELEERRE
gﬁ%ﬁk%%ﬂE’Mﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬂ?ﬁ?’&fﬂé‘;ﬁﬂ

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—5F
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEETT BEE T
Debt securities BEXFES 55,475 49,774
Mortgage loans KIFE R 5,790 6,086
Equity securities EREH 2,644 2,709
Cash for investment ARKRENES 728 725
64,637 59,294

The table below sets forth the total investment income
based on internal records:

TREH TERAIPTHENRE WS B

For the year ended 31

December
BE+-ZA=+—RHLEE
2022 2021
—E:-= —E-—F
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BZEr
Interest income and others FMEWAMEA 2,360 2157
Dividend income BREUWA 233 373

The investment income excludes income arising from

investment-linked products.

EHOREBERAT
—B-—EEH

REBRATEREHESHBELENRA -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

KEY OPERATIONAL DATA OF THE
INSURANCE DIVISION

The table below sets forth certain other key operational
data of the insurance division.

RIS BHETELLEHE

TREITREDBNAGERZELHE -

As at 31 December

BR+=—B=+—H
2022 2021
—E=-= —E=—
Market position/share B EN, 5 13th/1.8% 13th/1.6%
(by regular premium income) (REBEREHRAN) $134, $134,
1.8% 1.6%
Number of employees EEHE
- Hong Kong —-&B 472 541
- Macao — =P 39 27
Number of tied agents BRREHE
- Hong Kong —&8 2,250 2,423
- Macao — &P 954 1,039
Number of brokers and non-tied agents &L AFNEBRREH2 509 526
Number of bancassurance partners RITRBEIEREEE 5 5
MDRT qualifiers (Note 1) BEBERgESKAB (HFET1) 275 324
Expenses ratio (Note 2) ERX(Kit2) 8.0% 8.7%
Notes: Kiat -

1. Million Dollar Round Table (“MDRT”) is a global professional
association of life insurance and financial services
professionals that recognizes significant sales achievements
and high service standards.

2. Expenses ratio is operating expenses expressed as a
percentage of total weighted premium income.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND SOLVENCY
MARGIN

The table below sets forth a summary of the total
available capital and solvency ratio, the ratio expressed
as a percentage, of the surplus to the required solvency
margin of the legal entity carried out the insurance
business related activities, as determined at the relevant
time in accordance with the 10 and its subsidiary
legislation and based on standards required by the IO
and methodology consistently applied by our insurance
division.

EEENWEDN

BB HMENEED

TREINTHREXABBENESEITER
BR - R RBRIBRBRER K H W EE
B WREBRREEIRENEEMNEFR
oM —HERNLS L REABESEHBREN
FRERBITRBREBEBEDAFENE
IWBEBHEDL -

As at 31 December
R+=-ZBA=+—H
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET B &EE T

Total available capital AAEREE
Regulatory minimum capital RIEEEER
Solvency Ratio BHREIZREER

The solvency ratio was 247% on 31 December 2022,
down by 34% from 281% on 31 December 2021. The
drop was mainly driven by yield curve flattening and
credit spread widening.

EHOREBERAT
—B-—EEH

6,603 7,293
2,676 2,596
247% 281%

R-B——E+-A=+—R BEEHLE
BERBE2UT % W_B-—F+=HB=+-—
B #0281% T B8 734% o T M 3 2 ph 1A I 38 25
4548 57 R 5 7B ) 22 A B L o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

OTHER BUSINESSES REVIEW

During the year 2022, due to the continuous downward
pressure of market conditions and the impact of the
Company’s strategic retrenchment, the securities
business was exposed to greater pressure and
challenges. We will continue to the strategy aiming to
increase income while adhering to tight cost control
and optimization of internal human resources and
technology to achieve targeted market position.

During the year 2022, the employee stock ownership
plan (“ESOP”) team continued to enhance service
capabilities, upgraded system software functions and
strengthened system operation functions, followed the
goal of opening up the management side, and provided
enterprises with self-service equity management. ESOP
platform users grew steadily.

During the year 2022, the fintech business division
has actively expanded new business demands and
commercial opportunities, restored cooperation and
trust with important customers of the original banking
system, explored more cooperation methods and signed
a series of new cooperation contracts. In addition, the
Fintech division actively promoted the fund distribution
platform model, expanded new fund platform users, and
achieved preliminary results in the plan to expand the
fund AUM through technology empowerment.

In 2022, the investment banking business focus on
asset management and high net worth clients related
services to expand new businesses steadily and
maintained a stable trading volume and income on the
premise of reducing expenditure.

20
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REEBFTE R-ZF-_F HARDER
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HEXERNSE FSEFEEBAED
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SERARBES  ARFHREDE - B
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—ECICF  SRMRIBEBARNER
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X UHEET —RIFNSESH B
TRNMBRIHEREEESHEFAEN
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the global financial market will continue
to be affected by uncertainties such as economic and
geopolitical factors. However, guided by the Outline
of the 14th Five-Year Plan* ((“+ AR EIME)), the
Outline of Development Plan for the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area* (BB B AR EEZEIR
2/ E)) and the Plan for Comprehensively Deepening
Reform and Opening-Up of the Qianhai Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone*
(2EREABRBARNBRBESEFERERBAE X)),
Hong Kong will continue to deepen its cooperation
with Guangdong and Macao. To shore up the Group’s
economic strength and competitiveness in this region,
we will actively explore all suitable development
opportunities, review existing business strategies,
expand the business scope and consolidate the Group’s
position as a leading insurance and financial service
provider in Hong Kong.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had fixed bank
deposits with original maturity over 3 months and cash
and cash equivalents amounting to HK$4,173 million
(2021: HK$5,085 million). As at 31 December 2022, the
Group has HK$1,393 million (2021: HK$1,382 million)
bank borrowing outstanding and HK$1,641 million
(2021: HK$1,641 million) shareholder’s loan outstanding.
The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2022 is
16.96% (2021: 13.19%), which was measured as total
debt excluding those operation related liabilities to total
debt excluding those operation related liabilities plus
equity.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Details of movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 42(e) to the financial
statements.

EHOREBERAT
—B-—EEH

EEENWEDN

RE

RERN  2REMHEHEBEZ T EEM
WEBERZETHEMNTE - AW #
(T+HAIRI[ME) (BBRRNERBER
REME) RCEEARCAERBRARBE
SFERERRLSR)NEET  BEBSHEE
RICEEBR BN EHE - BT BMAEEE
BHANEEEIMBRFE D RAEEER
E—UEENERRE BN REXEKER
hREBHE ZELAKEEFRATBELR
ba & & BRI IR E AL

RBESRMBER

R-ZBZZF+ZA=1+—HB AEEZR
EHRZA=ZBEEANBRITERNBEERES
LZEEBAHAMNTIEBT(ZEZ—F:
508588 L) cR=ZZE-_—_F+=-_A=+-—
B AEEMNREZERTEESR13.93EBET
(ZEBE=Z—F :1382E8B ) r RAEBR=E
EXRBI6HERBL(ZEZ—F 1164188
L) o AEENEEEBHEE5H16.96 % (=
T-—F 1319%) LA ELLHBARE
NESAFETSHLLEBNEBENES
MANAELLRTE -

EXRER

REERRDTRAEEF BRI RERM
#42(e) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFNWR DN

RISK FACTORS

In 2022, the Group carried out timely and complete
identification and evaluation to manage the key risks.
The identified risks are being monitored according to
the risk appetite and the related regulation by the board
of directors and also the related committees assisting
the board.

(i)

(i)

22

Strategic Risk

Management recognised the importance of
incorporating insurance business with the financial
service ecosystem of the Group. On the other
hand, management is keen on enhancing the
business process and integration with financial
technology to create values to all customers of the
Group. The overall enhancement and integration
process creates uncertainties and increase
degree of difficulties on related risk management
requirement. Management proactively devotes
sufficient resources to support and enhance the
ongoing process.

Insurance Risk

Management considers insurance risk mainly
comprised:

Product design risk — potential defects in the
development of a particular insurance product.
To mitigate the risk, each of the new products
is required to go through pre-launch reviews
by various departments, including product
development, actuarial, legal and underwriting to
ensure the risk being aligned with the Group’s risk
appetite.

Lapse risk — the possibility of actual lapse
experience that diverges from the anticipated
experience assumed when products were priced
as well as financial loss due to early termination
of policies or contracts where the acquisition
cost incurred may not be recoverable from future
revenue. Management carries out regular studies
of persistency experience which will be assimilated
into new and in-force management and build in
measures including surrender charges to manage
the financial impact upon early termination by
policyholders.

2 Bz B 3=

RIZEZZF AEERK TEMETT
BBIFFE G LEBXTERK - RIERRR
HEECENER EESSURBBHES
SENEHBEZESETHBESE -

U]

(i)

B e L B

EEESRISRBEBAALEERSE
BMEEEERGNEEE -5 —FH
EEBHORMAEBRERES
RES AAEBEREEFAIEEE-
BERREANBESREELET THREM -
EIRFIEMN T A A EEEROEE -
EEEEBRAZTDNERRZFMNE
L EFETHIRE ©

R B2 =L B
EEERARBRARBIERE

EmRaTER - BERRBE®RERE
FHENEERRE BREERR  SEH
EmiFEEREBRHNM (BEEMBME
BE EBMER) OBMAESL U
TR B B SR O R B R A R I — B o

KHER - BERARERBINRER
EERABRROEBER TN - UL
K B R A AT BE R BB R R IR A UL [E]
WEAANRERSERALILMER
MEKEX EEEEHMRSELLE
B SEMAFTNERER I HEM
BiER (BERRER)  WEERER
BARAMRLEEENMHELE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Insurance Risk (Continued)

Pricing or underwriting risk — the possibility of
product related income being inadequate to
support future obligations arising from a product.
Further details related to this risk and the related
mitigation and monitoring measures is set out in
Note 5 “Insurance and financial risk management”
to the consolidated financial statements.

Claim risk — the possibility that the frequency or
severity of claims arising from insurance products
exceed the levels assumed when the product
was priced. Further details related to this risk and
the related mitigation and monitoring measures
are set out in Note 5 “Insurance and financial
risk management” to the consolidated financial
statements.

Market Risk, Credit Risk, Foreign Exchange Risk
and Liquidity Risk

The details of the market risk, credit risk, foreign
exchange risk and liquidity risk identified and
their related mitigation and monitoring measures
are detailed in Note 5 “Insurance, financial risk
management” to the consolidated financial
statements.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect
loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, personnel and systems or from external
events. The Group manages the risk primarily
through risk and control self-assessment and
reviews losses and fraud issues and provides
guidance, training and assistance to relevant
personnel for ongoing risk management purpose.

Risk and management control

Detailed risk and management control is set out in
corporate governance report section in this annual
report from pages 56 to 57.

EHOREBERAT
—B-—EEH

EEENWEDN

2 Bz R & (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

R B L B (48

EEILRER - EREBRATR
UXHEREENRREBH AN -
BBz E B K A B L B P R BE R e
MEZHBERNGES P BRRMFSIR
M BERER] -

BRER - REEMBERVERLR
EREBRBEMEEBRMIBRRAKFEN
A REME o BB R A B e AR A A B PR MK %
EERENESHBRRARGSHHER
B 5E5 [ AR B A0 B 5 JRl P BT 3 o

mEER - FRRER MERBIRD
EsEkR

EREBNTHSAR SHARR  IER
B AR B E £ E B & H A B A L B B A
REZERFEHRNGSHBRRHE
S5[REEMB B EREE] -

RER R

HERRBERARRAIRE  ABNER
TERARMAIMBEAEHNEESE
EEANEAR AEEFTEBEBREBMN
EHBERTME  AFERBRANEREIR
REEER WAHHEBASREHEES .
iﬂ;}%%ﬂ'l%ﬂh’iﬁ)] ERBENAREREHE

R B 0 B 42 )
HANERNEREFRNRAFRFECEE

578

EEERBEIMD ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and associates during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

At the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did
not have any charges on assets, other than security
deposits of HK$23,837,000 (2021: HK$9,900,000)
for banking facilities and HK$16,508,677,000 (2021:
HK$13,382,007,000) of investment together with
HK$856,494,000 (2021: HK$727,089,000) of fixed bank
deposit in favour of Autoridade Monetaria de Macau to
guarantee the technical reserves in accordance with the
Macau Insurance Ordinance.

COMMITMENTS

Details of commitments are set out in note 45 to the
financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segments are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of contingent liabilities are set out in note 52 to
the financial statements.

STAFFING AND REMUNERATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed 603
(2021: 814) full time employees, 522 (2021: 619) of
which were located in Hong Kong, 39 (2021: 27) in
Macao and 42 (2021: 168) in the People’s Republic of
China. The remuneration of employees includes salary
retention package and discretionary bonus. The Group
also adopted share option and share award schemes to
provide an incentive to the employees.

The remuneration policy and package, including
the share option and share awards, of the Group’s
employees are maintained at market level and reviewed
annually by the management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM
SUBSCRIPTION SHARES

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated
21 September 2020, the Company entered into
subscription agreements on 7 September 2020 with
(1) Jade Passion Limited (“Jade Passion”) in relation
to the subscription of 484,665,279 ordinary shares
of the Company at the subscription price of HK$3.17
and (2) MassMutual International LLC in relation to
the subscription of 160,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at the Subscription Price of HK$3.17 (together
refer to “Issue”). The total gross proceeds for the Issue
was HK$2,043,588,934 and the net proceeds was
HK$2,040,588,934.

As set out in the announcement of the Company dated
12 November 2021, there was subsequent update in use
of proceeds which the Company intends to temporarily
deploy in full or any part of the Unutilised Proceeds in
Strategic Investment to investments in medium term
investments with investment horizon of around 1 to
3 years including (i) debt instruments such as bonds,
debenture, notes and convertible notes, (ii) investments
in private equity and (iii) exchange traded funds and
hedge funds, and other fund investments types which
terms are compatible with Company’s investment
strategy.

EHEBEBARAT
SSii

EEEFNWR DN

RGBBEREAER

MAARARBHA-Z-_ZTFLA=-1T—
HeBRABEE XABR-Z=_FFh
B+ HEd(1) Jade Passion Limited (rJade
Passion DT X TRBWHZE AZEBERE

fR3.178 T 2 R ﬂ%f’f  85484,665 279H12|&®
AEER - 19(732( ) MassMutual International

LLCETY TRBWHZE "B HBIZIATE
TZRBERE160,000,000 & 2 7 F

B (7 ﬂmﬁ%ri‘ém) HITAHTSRIEAZ
£2,043,588,9348 5 ' FT 8 M E @ﬁEZ%
2,040,588,93458 7T ©

WRARRBMB=F=—F+—F+=H
ZREFHM . ARBHEAEREABBRELR
BB Zkﬂjﬁﬁﬂwﬂtﬁkﬁﬂhﬁqﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁ
FEREEZHRA D MBERREPRA
=FEPHRE  BEOEKLTA ﬁﬂﬁ%
EHREE - RIER ATERRIE . ()RS RER
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H R aRAAREEK 2 ESRER
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EBEENWRDW
USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM BRORBREBRIERAR &)
SUBSCRIPTION SHARES (Continued)
The table below sets out the actual application of net TR HEZE-_E-_—F+=-_H=+—H1t
proceeds of the Issue up to 31 December 2022: BROTAEREZERENERFERABR
Actual usage
Unutilised from Unutilised
proceed 1 Jan 2022 proceeds
up to to up to Expected timeline for
Use of 31 December 31 December 31 December utilising the remaining
proceeds 2021 2022 2022 net proceeds
—E-CE
-A
S —-HZE S
—E--F —EC-CF —E-CE
+=7 +-7 +=8
=t-8  =f-B  =1-8
IEE & ILER 4ok HeFmEREERN
FiERERR ERANE ERER FRNE BHEEE
HKS$ million ~ HKS million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million
FEET BEET BEET FEET
Strategic investment B BIRE 1,224.6 1,224.6 - 1,224.6 Expected to be fully
(note 1) (HfiE1) utilised on or before

31 December 2024
BIE-E-ME
+ZA=+-HEzA

ZOFA

Asset management  EEEBER (Mi#2) 306.1 - - - -
business (note 2)

Securities brokerage B A EL LW (F:23) 306.2 - - - -
business (note 3)

Working Capital EEES (MiF4) 204.1 - - - -
(note 4)

Total @t 2,041.0 1,224.6 - 1,224.6
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFNWR DN

RODBEAERBEARR (#)

SUBSCRIPTION SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

waz -

Remark:

mainly utilised on potential strategic investment for business
diversification and enhancement.

mainly utilised on asset management platform for launching
the financial products from time to time, in order to
achieve positive synergies between the Company’s capital
management and growth of its asset management business,
and facilitate external fundraising for such products.

mainly utilised on the securities brokerage business (i) when
more cash is required to be injected into the business to
increase its liquid capital resources in accordance with the
increased trading volumes; and (ii) the securities financing
business when more cash is required to be injected into the
business to support higher demand for IPO loans or margin
financing transactions.

mainly utilised on general working capital which covers
expenses incurred in the ordinary course of business of
the Group, including but not limited to manpower, rental
expenses, data license and network expenses and office
equipment expenses.

The expected timeline of utilising the remaining
proceeds is subject to significant uncertainties
including but not limited to the negotiation with
counterparties, market conditions and demand,
global economic environment, investment sentiment
and regulatory approval (if applicable) for the
above purposes. The Company adopted a treasury
management model that may involve (but shall not
be limited to) holding fixed income instruments and
high-quality financial investments in order to maximize
the Shareholders’ interest as a whole.

B

TEARBTEERRE BREESTME
BEL -

TEAREEERETE TAKTHRELHER
Em UBREAQNFEFAEEREEEEER
BRZENEBHEFER AHRULEERE
BIHEEE -

TEANBSFELEL  DORBXZE2ER
FEEZREUMZERTERMEMERE
ETERNER  URARNESBEXH
NMEEFSREUMZERIEUAZFEFR
BEALAHBRIRNENIRBERERS
EEERNBER -

FTEAR-REEES RELASEEEEYR
BEPHLENER BREFRARAD -HE
B BBHTE SAEERANPLAERREE
):: )

AR LA B 6 e R AT S RRIR Y TR
BEXRFEEAFTEELE  BEEFRR
REXZHFHR > THERGFMER
EHREERE  RESAMEEHE @
REA) ARAAVEANESEERAT
SR (BERRN) BEBEERET AN
BEENTRRE URABRE®RRES
R BRI -

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of event after the reporting period are set out in

note 53 to the financial statements.

EHOREBERAT
—B-—EEH

BEMENEH
BEPRNEHAFRENMFRRMEESS
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Independent Actuaries Report on Review of Embedded Value Information

NEBEFREMNBUREMER S

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF YUNFENG
FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

We have reviewed the Embedded Value of YF Life
Insurance International Limited (“YF Life”) (“the YF Life
EV”) set out on pages 30 to 38 of the Annual Report
of Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (“the Company” or
“Yunfeng Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022
(“the EV information”).

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and presentation of the EV information in
accordance with the general principle and methodology
of traditional embedded value and industry practice
for publicly listed companies in Hong Kong. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal controls relevant to the
maintenance of underlying data and information on the
in-force business and preparation of the EV information
which is free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; performing EV calculations; selecting
and applying appropriate methodologies; and making
assumptions that are consistent with market information
and are reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility, as independent actuaries, is to
perform certain review procedures set out in our letter of
engagement and, based on these procedures, conclude
whether the EV methodologies and assumptions are
consistent with industry practice for publicly listed
companies in Hong Kong, the general principle and
methodology of traditional embedded value and
available market information.

We have reviewed the methodology and assumptions
used in preparing the EV information, including the
following:

° The YF Life EV as of 31 December 2022;

o Value of one-year new business of YF Life issued
during the year ended 31 December 2022; and

° Movement analysis of the YF Life EV and sensitivity
analysis of value of in-force business and value of
one-year new business of YF Life.

Our review procedures included, but were not limited
to, discussing with management of Yunfeng Group
the methodology and assumptions, inspecting
documentation relating thereto, and considering whether
the methodologies are consistent with the general
principle and methodology of traditional embedded
value and industry practice for publicly listed companies
in Hong Kong and whether the assumptions are
consistent with available market information.
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Independent Actuaries Report on Review of Embedded Value Information
REEEEERERNNEBELREMBRE

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF YUNFENG
FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED (Continued)

The preparation of EV information requires assumptions
and projections to be made about future uncertain
events, many of which are outside the control of
Yunfeng Group. Therefore, actual experience may differ
from these assumptions and projections, and this will
affect the value of in-force business and the value of
one-year new business.

In forming our conclusion, we have relied on the
integrity, accuracy and completeness of audited and
unaudited data and information provided by Yunfeng
Group. Our work did not involve reperforming the EV
calculations, nor verifying the data and information
underlying the EV information.

Based on our review procedures, we have concluded
that the methodologies and assumptions used in
preparing the EV information are consistent with
industry practice for publicly listed companies in Hong
Kong and with available market information.

This report has been prepared pursuant to an
engagement contract between PricewaterhouseCoopers
Limited and Yunfeng Financial Group Limited. This
report is solely for the purpose set forth in the first and
third paragraphs of this report and is for the use of the
Board of Directors of Yunfeng Group only and is not to
be used for any other purpose or to be distributed to
any other parties. We expressly disclaim any liability or
duty to any other party for the contents of this report
and howsoever arising in connection with it.

Our work does not constitute an audit or other
assurance engagement in accordance with applicable
professional standards. Accordingly, we provide no
audit opinion, attestation or other form of assurance
with respect to our work or the information upon which
our work was based.

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited

Xiaobin Yuan, FSA

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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Embedded Value
NEEE

30

BACKGROUND

The Group mainly consists of two major segments
including life insurance business and other financial
services in the areas of investment holding, asset
management, pensions, other businesses and
corporate services. Life Insurance business is
operated by YF Life, a 69.8%-owned subsidiary,
which is the most significant part of the Group in
terms of total asset and profitability. To provide
additional information of the insurance business
of the Group, the Group disclosed the Embedded
Value (“EV”) of the segment.

DEFINITION

EV is a measure of value of shareholders’ interests
in the earnings distributable (“distributable
earnings”) from assets allocated to the in-force
business after sufficient allowance for the
aggregate risks in the business.

The EV equals to:
o Adjusted Net Worth (“ANW?”), plus

° Value of the in-force business before cost of
capital (“VIF before CoC”), minus

o Cost of Capital (“CoC”)

The ANW represents the net asset value on Hong
Kong statutory basis, with marked-to-market
adjustment to certain assets of our insurance
business segment.

The VIF before CoC is the present value of future
estimated after-tax statutory profits from in-force
business, discounted at the risk discount rate
as at 31 December 2022. Cost of Capital is the
difference between the amount of required capital
as at 31 December 2022 and the present value
of future releases, allowing for future after-tax
investment earnings on the capital.

Similarly, the new business value is calculated as
the difference of new business value before CoC
and CoC arising from new business sales in the
period. The new business value before CoC is the
present value, discounted at issue date, of future
estimated after-tax statutory profits emerging from
new business sales in the past 12 months, i.e. 1
January 2022 to 31 December 2022.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

We adopted a traditional deterministic discounted
cash flow methodology to determine the
components of Embedded Value and the New
Business Value. This methodology makes implicit
allowance for the time value of options and
guarantees and other risks associated with the
realisation of the expected future distributable
earnings through the use of a risk adjusted
discount rate and is consistent with the industry
practice in the market.

In determining the value of in-force business, our
insurance segment’s in-force policy databases as
at 31 December 2022 were used. New business
volumes and mix were based on the actual
business written by our insurance segment in
the 12-month period from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022.

It should be noted that, in assessing the total value
of a life insurance company, the value attributed
to future new business can be determined as the
product of the one-year new business value and a
multiple which reflects an allowance for future new
business sales and the risks associated with it at
the assumed profit margin.

The Group has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers
Limited (“PwC”), an international firm of consulting
actuaries, to examine whether the methodology
and assumptions used by us in the preparation of
the Embedded Value as at 31 December 2022 is
consistent with standards generally adopted by
insurance companies in Hong Kong.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The calculations of Embedded Value and the New
Business Value of insurance business segment
are based on certain assumptions with respect to
future experience. Thus, the actual results could
differ significantly from what is envisioned when
these calculations were made. In addition, the
insurance business segment is held through a
69.8%-owned subsidiary of the Group. With the
Embedded Value and the New Business Value of
the insurance business being presented on a 100%
basis below, the related value assessment should
be considered accordingly.
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Embedded Value

A
NEEE
5. EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE 5 EBEBRERBASEE
5.1 Embedded value 51 REEE

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—E-CHF —E-—F
+=ZA +=A
=+—H =t+—~H
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEET BEET
Adjusted Net Worth KA FE 8,942 5,610

Value of in-force business before BREKNBRE AR A A
cost of capital WEE 13,960 14,834
Cost of capital =N (2,315) (2,383)
Embedded value RNEEBE 20,587 18,061

Attributable to: AR -
Owners of the Company AR ERERER 14,370 12,607
Non-controlling interests IR RE 6,217 5,454
Embedded value REEBE 20,587 18,061
5.2 New Business value 5.2 HEBEE

For the past  For the past

12 months 12 months
as of as of

31 December 31 December
2022 2021

BZE HZE
—_E-= B
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H

11218 A 1121 A
HK$ million HK$ million
BEETT BZEBor

New Business Value before cost of 1R E 78 & 25 5 B9
capital MEKERE 893 851
Cost of capital =N (135) (171)

New Business Value after cost of HBRERREED
capital HMEKEE 758 680

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
32 Annual Report 2022



Embedded Value
NEEE

5. EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE (Continued) 5 BERBASEEGSE)
5.3 Movement analysis of embedded value 53 AEEEESFH DN
2022 2021

—E-CHF —E-—F
Notes  HKS$ million HK$ million

Bt BEET BEET
Embedded Value as at 1 January R—H—HH®H
REEE 18,061 15,736
New business value HEREE a 758 680
Expected return on Embedded REEEERKRE
value b 1,565 1,360
Assumption and model changes R ME T &t c 2,267 558
Investment return variance REOHEE d (1,635) 92
Other experience variance and Hibh&he =2 F
exchange rate impact Exge e (429) (365)
Embedded Value as at 31 R+=ZB=+—H
December NAEEE 20,587 18,061
Note: it -
a) New business contribution from sales of new a) BE—FRAFMEKESHER
business in the past one-year
b)  Return on value of in-force business plus b) ABAREBHNCRMNLELAZFEN
expected interest on Adjusted Net Worth T8 ER A &
c) Impact of assumption and model changes on c) BERMER S EHEMERARRKT
the future distributable earnings of the in-force PN ENEE
business
d) Differences between the actual investment d EBRREQFEEHRELFKRH
returns and expected investment returns HEE
e)  Differences between the actual experience and e) ERKLHERTXER.BFEFXRERR
expected experience for mortality, morbidity, ZMNERANTEHLERBNER

lapses, and expenses

EHERENERAT
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Embedded Value
NEEE

5.

34

EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE (Continued)

5.4 Key assumptions

Our policies state that it adopts a best
estimate approach in setting the assumptions
which are used in the calculation of its
Embedded Value and New Business Value.
The assumptions were based on the actual
experience of YF Life and certain industry
experience.

The basis and assumptions used in the
calculations are summarised below. These
assumptions have been made on a “going
concern” basis.

Risk discount rate

The risk discount rate represents the
long-term post-tax cost of capital of the
hypothetical investor for whom the valuation
is made, together with an allowance for
risk, taking into account factors such as the
political and economic environment in Hong
Kong.

We use risk discount rate of 8.75% for 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 as the
base scenario assumption for both in-force
and new business.

Investment returns

Future investment returns have been
calculated as the weighted average of the
investment returns on existing assets and new
assets.

The investment returns on existing assets
and new assets have been determined by
book yield, the forward rate yields available
on US government bonds, credit spreads that
reflects the allowance for risk of default and
equity return of underlying assets respectively.
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5.

EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE (Continued)

5.4 Key assumptions (Continued)

Credit rate

The crediting rates for universal life business
have been set to reflect regulatory and
contractual requirements, policyholders’
reasonable expectations and earn rate
assumptions. The crediting rates were worked
out as earn rate less crediting rate spread.

Mortality

The mortality assumption is based on both
emerging experience and industry experience,
reflecting its expectation of how experience
will emerge.

The experience mortality rates have been set
as a percentage of HKA93 mortality table
with an adjustment of increased mortality at
older ages (“Adj. HKA93”). There were also
adjustment factor for non-smoker and smoker.

Morbidity

Morbidity rate assumptions have been set as
a percentage of the reinsurance rates due to
the lack of credible claims experience.

Lapse

The lapse assumptions were based on YF
Life’s experience and adjusted to reflect
the results of its recent experience. The
assumptions have been set with reference
to pricing assumptions where credible
experience data is not available.

The lapse assumptions vary by products and
policy duration.

EHOREBERAT
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Embedded Value
NEEE

5.
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EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE (Continued)

5.4 Key assumptions (Continued)

Operating expenses

Operating expenses have been projected
based on unit expense assumption. Projected
excess or saving of expense compared
with unit expense assumption has not been
included in VIF or new business value. The
historical excess or saving of actual expense
compared with unit expense assumption has
been included in ANW component of EV.

Inflation rate

Future inflation rate was assumed to be 2%
per annum for 2022. This assumption is based
on expectations of long-term consumer price
and salary inflation.

Taxation

A tax rate of 0.825% of net premium income
for Hong Kong business and 12% of pre-tax
statutory profit for Macau business has been
assumed for 2022.

Required capital

The embedded value projections assume
that it maintains required capital at 150% of
minimum solvency margin.

Statutory valuation

The distributable earnings are based on
statutory reserve in accordance with the Hong
Kong reserving regulations.

Reinsurance

Reinsurance assumptions have been
developed based on the reinsurance
arrangements in force as at the valuation date
and the recent historical and expected future
experience.
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5. EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE (Continued)

5.5 Sensitivity testing

We performed sensitivity analysis on the
value of in-force business and the new
business value as at 31 December 2022, by
independently varying certain assumptions
regarding future experience. Specifically, the
following changes in assumptions have been
considered.

New money yields increased by 100
basis points per annum

New money yields decreased by 100
basis points per annum

Risk discount rate increased by 50 basis
points

Risk discount rate decreased by 50 basis
points

10% increase in lapse rate and skip
premium rates (i.e. 110% of the central
assumptions)

10% decrease in lapse rate and skip
premium rates (i.e. 90% of the central
assumptions)

10% increase in mortality and morbidity
rates and loss ratios (i.e. 110% of the
central assumptions)

10% decrease in mortality and morbidity
rates and loss ratios (i.e. 90% of the
central assumptions)

10% increase in acquisition and
maintenance expenses (i.e. 110% of the
central assumptions)

10% decrease in acquisition and
maintenance expenses (i.e. 90% of the
central assumptions)
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5. EMBEDDED VALUE OF YF LIFE (Continued) 5 ERRRANESEEE)

5.5 Sensitivity testing (Continued) 5.5 SHEMAE (EF)
Value of

in-force New

business business

after value after

cost of cost

For the year 2022 capital of capital

RE A HMFRE A
B A1 B BAEH

=g BEREKEE MEKEE
Assumptions HKS$ million  HKS$ million
R HEETT HEET
Base scenario VN EE 11,645 758
New money yields increased by HIZEEWRZEE

100 basis points per annum 1 H11001E B + 12,588 837
New money yields decreased by HMEEEWEEEFE

100 basis points per annum BA10018E 2+ 9,914 669
Risk discount rate increased by 50 [& [ 8518 &

basis points 05018 BE + 10,786 701
Risk discount rate decreased by 50 [& [ 85 IR &

basis points A 501E & F 12,593 821
10% increase in lapse rate and skip BHRZMAMRE R

premium rates EI10% 11,478 732
10% decrease in lapse rate and RBREMEAMBRER

skip premium rates HA10% 11,836 785
10% increase in mortality and BHTERNBERERURB LR

morbidity rates and loss ratios EHN10% 10,677 723
10% decrease in mortality and BTENBEFERURE LR

morbidity rates and loss ratios WA10% 12,630 793
10% increase in acquisition and ERMEFER

maintenance expenses B H10% 11,421 728
10% decrease in acquisition and EmMEREE A

maintenance expenses WA10% 11,870 788
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

CHAIRMAN

Mr. Yu Feng, aged 59, was appointed as the Chairman
and a non-executive Director and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee in November 2015. Mr. Yu is the
co-founder and chairman of Yunfeng Capital, a private
equity firm founded by Mr. Yu together with other
entrepreneurs in 2010.

Mr. Yu is a director of YFHL, Key Imagination and Jade
Passion. YFHL, Key Imagination and Jade Passion are
substantial shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Yu obtained an EMBA degree from China Europe
International Business School, the PRC in March 2001
and a master of arts degree in philosophy from Fudan
University, the PRC in July 1991.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Huang Xin, aged 47, was appointed as an executive
Director and a member of the Remuneration Committee
in November 2015 and was appointed as interim chief
executive officer of the Company in September 2022.
Mr. Huang is a partner and a member of the investment
committee of Yunfeng Capital. Mr. Huang served as vice
president of Shanghai Kaituo Capital Limited from 2006
to 2010, where he was in charge of various investments.
Mr. Huang was vice president of finance at Target Media
Holdings Limited from 2005 to 2006, where Mr. Huang
managed its daily financial operations and led its equity
financing and merger and integration with Focus Media
Holding Limited. Mr. Huang worked at General Electric
Company from 1997 to 2005.

Mr. Huang currently acts as a director of Jade Passion,
a substantial shareholder of the Company. He served as
a director of YTO Express Group Co., Ltd (stock code:
600233) which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
until 13 October 2022 and a director of Sanxiang
Impression Co., Ltd (stock code: 000863) which is listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange until 29 June 2021.

Mr. Huang obtained a master of business administration
degree from China Europe International Business
School, the PRC in October 2011 and a bachelor’s
degree in accounting from Fudan University, the PRC in
July 1997.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSNEEABER

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Adnan Omar Ahmed, aged 55, was appointed
as a non-executive Director in November 2018.
Mr. Ahmed is also a director of YF Life. Mr. Ahmed
is the chairman, president and chief executive officer
of MMI, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Ahmed joined MMLIC, the parent holding company
of MMI, a substantial shareholder of the Company, in
October 2015 as Executive Vice President and Chief
Human Resources Officer. Mr. Ahmed brings with him
an impressive history of more than 20 years of global
financial services and leadership experience, ranging
from operating to human resources roles. He joined
MMI from Citigroup, Inc. in London where he was
Managing Director and Head of Human Resources for
Europe, Middle East and Africa as well as the Global
Head of Recruitment for the firm. Previously, he led
global shared services in the operations and technology
division for all of Citigroup employees.

Prior to joining Citigroup in 2010, Mr. Ahmed began
his career at Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, rotating
through various roles including corporate finance,
operations, credit and human resources. He then spent
17 years at Morgan Stanley in New York, Tokyo, Sydney
and Hong Kong, during which time he held a range of
roles including Chief Administrative Officer and Head of
Human Resources, Asia.

Mr. Ahmed is on the Advisory Board of NPX Capital,
Korea since October 2019 and also on the Advisory
Board of Essenlix Corp., US since November 2020.
He has been a non-executive director on the board
of Nippon Wealth Insurance in Japan, a subsidiary
of Nippon Life from 2018-2021. Prior to these
directorships, he also served on the board of Temasek
Management Services, Singapore between 2010-2018,
Human Capital Leadership Institute in Singapore from
2017-2019, and Bank Handlowy, Poland and Citibank
Turkey, both between 2012-2015.

Mr. Ahmed holds a bachelor of science degree
in computer science, a bachelor of arts degree in
international relations, and a master’s degree in
business administration, all from Tulane University. He
is based in Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Michael James O’Connor, aged 54, was
appointed as a non-executive Director in March 2020.
Mr. O’Connor is the General Counsel of MMLIC, leading
its legal, compliance, government relations, internal
audit and corporate governance functions. MMLIC is the
sole member of MMI, a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Mr. O’Connor was appointed as a manager
of MMI, a substantial shareholder of the Company on
August 2020. He is a member of MMLIC’s Executive
Leadership team. Mr. O’Connor initially joined MMLIC’s
Law Division in 2005 and from 2008-2011, he led the
company’s corporate law and government relations
teams. From 2011 to 2017, Mr. O’Connor served in a
number of business leadership positions at MMLIC,
first as Chief of Staff to MMLIC’s CEO Roger Crandall
and later as head of corporate development and
mergers and acquisitions and then as head of MMLIC’s
international insurance operations.

Prior to joining MMLIC, Mr. O’Connor served from 2002-
2005 as U.S. General Counsel of Irving Oil Corporation,
an independent global petroleum refiner and marketer.
From 1995 until 2002, Mr. O’Connor practiced corporate
law at Goodwin Procter LLP in Boston, where he
was a member of the M&A/Corporate Governance
and Securities & Corporate Finance practice groups.
Mr. O’Connor received a B.A. in Legal Studies from the
University of Massachusetts at Amherst. He earned his
J.D. from the Boston University School of Law, where
he was a G. Joseph Tauro Distinguished Scholar and
an Editor of the Boston University Law Review, and his
M.B.A., majoring in Finance, from the Wharton School
of Business at the University of Pennsylvania.

Ms. Hai Olivia Ou, aged 43, was appointed as a
non-executive Director in November 2015, and was
re-designated as an executive Director and appointed
as interim chief executive officer in February 2020, and
was re-designated as a non-executive Director in August
2022. She has ceased to be the interim chief executive
officer of the Company in October 2020. Ms. Hai is a
managing director of Yunfeng Capital and specialises
in investments and management related to the financial
services industry, especially for investments in Internet
Finance and strategic management in insurance
company. Prior to joining Yunfeng Capital, Ms. Hai was
an actuarial partner at Deloitte China from 2012 and
was engaged in the provision of consulting services
to overseas and domestic insurance companies.
Ms. Hai has also worked at HSBC Insurance (Asia)
Limited in Hong Kong from 2010 to 2012 and
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in the United Kingdom
from 2002 to 2010.

Ms. Hai is a qualified fellow member of the Institute and
Faculty of Actuaries in the United Kingdom and a fellow
member of the China Association of Actuaries.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSNEEABER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Qi Daqing, aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, and a member
of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee in February 2016. In March
2019, Mr. Qi was appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Qi is currently a professor
of Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business where he
previously served as director and associate dean of the
executive master of business administration department.
Mr. Qi’s research interests primarily focus on financial
accounting, financial reporting and their impact on
corporate business strategy. Mr. Qi has published
many articles in accounting and finance journals. Mr. Qi
worked at The Chinese University of Hong Kong and the
Feature Syndicate of the Department of Home News for
Overseas, Xinhua News Agency prior to joining Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business in 2002.

Currently Mr. Qi serves as independent director of
Sohu.com Inc. (NASDAQ: SOHU) and Momo Inc.
(NASDAQ: MOMO), all of which are listed on NASDAQ;
and independent non-executive director of Haidilao
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 06862),
Bison Finance Group Limited (stock code: 00888) and
SinoMedia Holding Limited (stock code: 00623), all of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Qi served
as an independent non-executive director of Honghua
Group Limited (stock code: 00196) from 18 January
2008 to 1 January 2018, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, an independent non-executive director of
Dalian Wanda Commercial Properties Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 03699) from 29 January 2016 to 20 September
2016, a company delisted from the Stock Exchange on
20 September 2016, and an independent non-executive
director of Jutal Offshore Oil Services Limited (stock
code: 03303) from 31 July 2015 to 27 April 2022.
Mr. Qi had also been an independent director of Focus
Media Holding Limited (NASDAQ: FMCN) and AutoNavi
Holdings Ltd. (NASDAQ: AMAP), all of which were
listed on NASDAQ, an independent director of Bona
Film Group Limited and iKang Healthcare Group, Inc.
which were listed on NASDAQ and ceased to be public
companies, and an independent director of China Vanke
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 000002; and listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 02202).

Mr. Qi graduated with a doctoral degree in accounting
from The Eli Broad Graduate School of Management
of Michigan State University in the U.S.A. in 1996. He
also obtained a master’s degree in management from
University of Hawaii in the U.S.A in 1992 and dual
bachelor’s degrees (in biophysics and international
news) from Fudan University in 1985 and 1987
respectively.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard, aged 74, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee in August 2011. Mr. Chu was the vice
president, Asia and chief representative, China of
Teck Resources Limited. Mr. Chu was responsible
for the development of an Asian strategy for the
company, monitoring China’s economic performance
and promoting business development opportunities
in China. Mr. Chu held various positions including
corporate controller for Teck Resources Limited from
1978 to 2007 and was the vice president, Asia and chief
representative, China from 2007 to April 2011.

Mr. Chu serves as an independent non-executive
director of Grandshores Technology Group Limited
(stock code: 01647), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Chu holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from
University of British Columbia and was a member of the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.

Mr. Xiao Feng, aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, and a member of
the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee in
March 2019. Mr. Xiao is currently the vice chairman and
executive director of China Wanxiang Holding Co., Ltd.
(hEBEERARLDT). Mr. Xiao has more than 27
years of experiences in finance, asset management and
securities management and had served key positions in
different institutions including securities management
office of the People’s Bank of China, Shenzhen Branch
from 1992 to 1993, Securities Management Office
of Shenzhen from 1993 to 1998 and Bosera Fund
Management Co., Ltd. from 1998 to 2011. Since 1998,
Mr. Xiao has also been appointed as the director,
chairman or president of various finance company, fund
or asset management company, trust company and
insurance company.

Mr. Xiao obtained a bachelor’s degree of arts in Chinese
from Jiangxi Normal University in 1983 and a doctoral
degree in economics from Nankai University in 2003.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRS

The Board of the Company is committed to maintaining
high standards of corporate governance. It believes that
a high standard of corporate governance provides an
effective framework and solid foundation for attracting
and retaining high calibre and talented management,
promoting high standards of accountability and
transparency and meeting the expectations of all the
Shareholders. The Board persists to establish a good
corporate governance framework that is essential for
effective management, continued business growth
and a healthy corporate culture for the enhancement
of shareholders’ value in total. The Board believes
that corporate culture is a prominent element to the
fulfilment of the Company’s mission. The Board has
been putting efforts in review and enhance its risk
management and internal controls and procedures in
light of changes in regulations and developments in best
practices, so as to ensure that the Company’s purpose,
values and strategies are aligned with the corporate
culture. The principles of corporate governance
adopted by the Group stress the importance of a quality
board, sound internal controls, and transparency and
accountability to all the Shareholders.

Throughout the Year, the Company has adopted and
complied with the applicable code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) in force
during the Year as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct
regarding Director’s securities transactions with terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out
in the Model Code. Following specific enquiry by the
Company, all the Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards as stated in
the Model Code throughout the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the formulation of the
Group’s purposes, values, strategies and policies,
regulating and reviewing risk management and internal
control systems, formulating and reviewing the Group’s
corporate governance policy, and directing and
supervising the management of the business operations
of the Group to ensure that its business objectives are
met. The Board also ensures the fullest communication
with shareholders and the company’s recognition of
shareholders’ interest. The management of the Group
is responsible for the day-to-day business operations
and management of the Group and implementing the
policies and strategies formulated by the Board and is
accountable to the Board.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the business of the Group. As at the date of this
report, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Chairman

Mr. Yu Feng (Non-executive Director)
Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Xin (Interim Chief Executive Officer)
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Adnan Omar Ahmed
Mr. Michael James O’Connor
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Qi Daging
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard
Mr. Xiao Feng

The Company has been maintaining the number of
independent non-executive Directors at not less than
one-third of the number of the Board members with a
number of at least three and has ensured that at least
one of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise as required
by the Listing Rules. The participation of independent
non-executive Directors in the Board brings independent
judgement to ensure the interests of all Shareholders
have been duly considered.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRS

THE BOARD (Continued)

For a Director to be considered independent, that
Director should not have any direct or indirect material
interest in the Group. In determining the independence
of Directors, the Board follows the requirement set out
in the Listing Rules. The Company has received from
each of the independent non-executive Directors a
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules in respect of the year ended 31
December 2022 and the Company considers that they
are independent.

Currently the non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors do not have specific terms
of appointment. Code provision B.2.2 provides that
every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. According to the articles of
association of the Company, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if the number is not a multiple
of three, then, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third), shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Directors shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years at each annual
general meeting, and offer themselves for re-election.

The current Directors and their brief biographical details
are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the CEO
are complementary, but importantly they are distinct
and separate with a clear and well-established division
of responsibilities. The Chairman, Mr. Yu Feng, is
responsible for providing leadership to the Board,
ensuring Board effectiveness and fostering constructive
relationship between Directors. The Interim CEO,
Mr. Huang Xin, leads the management team and is
responsible for managing the business of the Group,
implementing the policies and strategies approved
by the Board, and assumes full accountability for the
day-to-day operations and management of the Group.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report, there are no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships between Board
members and between the Chairman and the CEO.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

The Board meets regularly and at least 4 times a year.
Between scheduled meetings, senior management of
the Group provides to the Directors the information on
the activities and developments in the businesses of the
Group on a timely basis and, when required, additional
Board meetings are held. In addition, the Directors
have full access to the information of the Group and
to independent professional advice whenever should
they consider necessary. To ensure all directors an
opportunity to attend, notice of at least 14 days will be
given of a regular board meeting and an agenda and
accompanying board papers will be sent, in full, to all
directors at least 3 days before the date of a board
or board committee meeting (or other agreed period).
During the Year, a total of 4 Board meetings and 1
general meeting, including the annual general meeting
were held and the attendance of each Director is set out
below:

PNTTD
TRER/RE

EEE#)

EESTHEMER BFEELETIR-R
EESHNER2E AEESREEAS
EERAESRHEGHASEXBIHMNER
ZER YR EFTERETHIMNEZSE
ot EBETRBERAREFTERZE
ESAEEENRBYNEXZR - BEM
FESHAREHFESR  AHESEEY
SRERREELURBH ESSETHER
MBEREREABREE N EEBREFEART2E
EE UWELEAEBRTESZERHAETE
S22 AHN=XA (SHENEMmBERR)
K RAFE  ARFAAHBTIRESE
FRRIARRAE  BFEIARRBFRE
BEEZHERREINT :

Number of meetings attended in the year ended 31 December 2022/

Number of meetings eligible to attend

BE-E-CE4CBCtH-RLEELESENE /SERSNNEE N
Board NC RC AC  AGM (Note)

R4 & BN BRER

gzg Z8¢ Z8¢ 288 AEHE)

Chairman IR
Mr. Yu Feng (non-executive Director) BELE(FHTEES)
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Huang Xin ERsx
Mr. Cheung David RaiE
(resigned on 28 September 2022) (R=E-Z#1 =1/ | HFE)
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Mr. Adnan Omar Ahmed Adnan Omar Ahmed % 4

Michael James O'Connor’t &
BELL (H-E- £/ F=HHFFE

Mr. Michael James O'Connor
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou (re-dlesignated as

non-executive Director on 3 August 2022) ~ ##/7£%)
Independent non-executive Directors BUHTEES
Mr. Qi Daging BAELE
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard RRFRE
Mr. Xiao Feng HRELE
Note:

NC - Nomination Committee

RC - Remuneration Committee

AC - Audit Committee

AGM - annual general meeting held on 28 June 2022

The Chairman also held meeting(s) with independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors during the Year.

EHOREBERAT
—B-—EEH

4/4 1 - - 1

4/4 - 11 - 11
3/3 - - - 11

4/4 - - - 01

4/4 - - - 01

4/4 - - - 11

3/4 11 11 212 11

4/4 11 11 212 11

4/4 - 11 212 11

Kz

NC-IREZEE

RC-FMZzES

AC - BRZEES

BEBEAE-RZE-__FXA=Z+NBLETHR
RBFEXRE

REEE  TEFRBIEATESETT
REHMESEENEE -
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, should always know their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the businesses and
activities of the Group. Each newly appointed Director
would receive an induction package covering the

ESAREAANRSEEXRRE

PEEE (BEBUAHITES) BAERRE
BRESCHARECL T RAEENERR
EH SR LECEBENI —EABS
KoOREAEEERR LA DESAKE
CHEEREEHRME

Group’s businesses and the statutory and regulatory
obligations of a director of a listed company.

During the Year, all Directors have received the

following trainings:

RAFE 2REFCEZTIEI

Continuing Professional

Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and other

Directors relevant topics
ERLEER EBERR

= RHMAHBERE 2 S EE T
Chairman FE
Mr. Yu Feng (non-executive Director) [ %% (FEHITEE) v
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Huang Xin BEELE v
Mr. Cheung David (resigned on 28 WAL E (R=E=——FEHAH

September 2022) Z+/VHEHE) 4
Non-executive Directors FHITESE
Mr. Adnan Omar Ahmed Adnan Omar Ahmed 3t 4 v/
Mr. Michael James O’Connor Michael James O’Connort 4 v
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou (re-designated as Bzt (R=ZFE-ZZZFNA=

non-executive Director on 3 August HFFERIHITESE)

2022) v
Independent non-executive BAUFHTES

Directors
Mr. Qi Daging KB EE v/
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard ARFRE v/
Mr. Xiao Feng HELE 4
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted an updated board diversity
policy in 2022 (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets
out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on
the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board.

The Company recognises the benefits of a Board that
possesses an appropriate balance and levels of skills,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
essential to support the execution of its corporate and
business strategies and to enhance the quality and
effectiveness of its performance. Board diversity will
strengthen the Company’s strategic objectives in driving
business results; enhance good corporate governance
and reputation; and attract and retain talent for the
Board.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including
professional qualifications and experience, cultural and
educational background, race and ethnicity, gender, age
and length of service. The Company will also take into
consideration factors based on its own business model
and specific needs from time to time in determining the
optimum composition of the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board composition
under major criteria for diversity was summarised as
follows:

8 Executive Directors Female
; HITES z
6
Non-executive
5 Directors
IEHITES
4
3
2 Independent
Non-executive
_Directors
Ul By EHTES
0
Designation Gender Age Group
125 B Fir
EERESHEBERAT

“ECFFR

Master Degree :
ERat=ths DA

B8y

Education
Background

BEES

AN\ A g s
1E %/nﬁ%

EEERESZTIBE

RAIRZBEZ_HNEFNESERESZ T
tHE(EE2SZRLEE] EFEHIBE
EYRBERFEETEAES L RAEZESE
BEMEMER A8 -

DA TH ABFEZERBREEKREZ
B AR EREAEEHHE UXFES
HOLEREBEBRREAHBEEERER
REHEE -ESEMES LB ERA
ARAREEE TERFNELEER

BERARESENSIRREAS 2KBKER -

3 I8 5% B

>>
al
¥

ARARAREEZEEER (BREEXERK
KR CNEREBES BR- MHH - FRR
RBRBER)  EREZFERES T - NE
CTESECRERER ARRATEREBS
BEBRAR TR 2EERAMEE -

RBESEHH REIENSAAEZESEN
MRBENT ¢

Actuarial
BE
Corporate Law

Bachelor Degree ®E

Scbolar
BE

Professional Directorship with
Experience Company
HELH (No. of years)
BR 75 5 HA
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)

The Board considers that the current Board composition
is diverse and meets the criteria of the board diversity
policy. Accordingly, no measurable objectives have
been set for implementing the aforementioned policy.
The Board will review the policy from time to time to
ensure that the Board Diversity Policy is complied with.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of Board Diversity
Policy on an annual basis. A copy of the Board Diversity
Policy is published on the Company’s website for public
information.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties. During the Year, the Board has
reviewed the policies and practices on corporate
governance. The Board has also reviewed and
monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, and
the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable
to employees and Directors. The Board has also
reviewed and ensured the Group’s compliance with the
relevant legal and regulatory requirements, compliance
with CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report. Besides, the Company has set up
three committees including, the Nomination Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee.
Each committee has its specific terms of reference with
reference to the CG Code.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was chaired by Mr. Qi
Daqing with existing members of Mr. Huang Xin,
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard and Mr. Xiao Feng. The
Remuneration Committee is responsible to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management of the
Group. In addition, the Remuneration Committee shall
meet as and when required to consider remuneration
related matters such as making recommendations to
the Board on the Group’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management,
and to assist the Group in the administration of the
fair and transparent procedure for setting policies on
the remuneration of Directors and senior management
of the Group. The written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Code
provision E.1.2(c)(i) was adopted by the Remuneration
Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held
1 meeting. The Remuneration Committee reviewed
the remuneration packages for Directors and senior
management of the Group by assessing their
performance and with reference to their expected duties
and responsibilities and the current market condition
and made recommendation to the Board.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted a
Remuneration Policy in 2017, which sets out different
remuneration policies and structures for independent
non-executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
executive Directors, reflecting the Group’s objectives
of a sound governance process and long-term value
creation for the Group’s shareholders. Details of
the remuneration of the Directors of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements. The remuneration paid or payable to the
senior management of the Company by bands during
the Year is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)

PNTTD
TRER/RE

YHMEEE(#)

REAFE  FWESSRTIUNEER  FTWE
EECBBMEERRURTSENRER -
ERNTASHESRSREBRAEBZHFME
B UHESFRHEEBER -

FMEZEESER - E—tERNESHFHN®
FOHETHREIIFEATEE - FEHTE
ERBITEENTREATFHBEREE KB
TRENAEBEEFURASERRAIERE
EENEZ RAFE EHREENEHMF
BEEENMERRMTIS - REAFE B
gJ‘ESZBEHZIK’AE%%&%EEEEF&%@H%}R
N

Number of persons

FMER GET) AH
HK$Nil to HK$5,000,000 £ £5,000,000/% 7T 2
HK$5,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 5,000,001 Jt £10,000,0007% 7T 1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was chaired by Mr. Yu Feng
with existing members of Mr. Qi Daqging and Mr. Chu
Chung Yue, Howard. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee have been determined with
reference to the CG Code and posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board at least once every year, making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Group’s corporate strategy,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and selecting individuals
nominated for directorship (if necessary), assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors, in particular the
Chairman and the CEO. In considering the nomination
of new directors, the Board will take into account the
qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
the review of the Board Diversity Policy, considering
factors including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service of
Board members, and review the measurable objectives
that the Board has set for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy (if any), and monitor the progress on
achieving the measurable objectives (if any).

The Company has adopted a nomination policy on 1
January 2019 (the “Nomination Policy”). The objective
of the Nomination Policy is to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business. The Nomination Policy sets out
formal procedures for selection, appointment and
re-appointment of Directors. The appointment of a new
Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual
vacancy as and when it arises) or any re-appointment
of Directors is a matter for decision by the Board upon
the recommendation of the proposed candidate by the
Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a
candidate is qualified shall include but not limited to
his or her integrity, accomplishment and experience, in
particular, in the industry of the Group’s businesses,
commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest and ability to contribute to the diversity of the
Board.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held 1
meeting. The Nomination Committee reviewed the
structure of the Board and the Board Diversity Policy,
and considered the nomination of the retiring Directors
for re-election based on the nomination policy. In
considering the nomination of appointment and/or
re-appointment of directors, the Nomination Committee
assessed the relevant candidates on criteria such as
integrity, experience, skill, professional qualifications,
independence and ability to commit time etc, and made
recommendation to the Board for approval.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Chu Chung Yue,
Howard, with existing members of Mr. Qi Daqging and
Mr. Xiao Feng.

Mr. Chu holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from
University of British Columbia and is a member of the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. Mr. Chu
has appropriate professional qualifications as required
under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in
line with the CG Code and are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Audit
Committee is required, amongst other things, to oversee
the relationship with the external auditors, to review
the Group’s interim results and annual results and to
monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the
Group, to review the scope, extent and effectiveness of
the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems, internal audit and to review the
Group’s financial and accounting policies.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the Year.
There is no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors. The
Audit Committee has reviewed, inter alia, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls, financial reporting and
risk management matters of the Group. The Audit
Committee has also reviewed, and had meetings and
discussions with external auditors, on the interim and
annual consolidated financial statements of the Group.

WHISTLE-BLOWING AND ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Board believes that anti-corruption and
whistleblowing are core to establishing a healthy
corporate culture and promoting high ethical standards
of the Group. We have established a whistleblowing
policy at Group level and a Speak-up Policy at the
main subsidiary (insurance business) (the “Main
Subsidiary”) level. Employees can report any suspected
non-compliance or misconduct without disclosing their
identity to ensure the whistle blowers can uphold the
Group’s ethical standards without concerns of being
retaliated.
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WHISTLE-BLOWING AND ANTI-CORRUPTION
(Continued)

The Group has zero tolerance on any forms of bribery,
extortion, fraud or money laundering in our operation.
Our compliance manual and corporate compliance
guide outline the expectations of ethical behaviour for
all employees to achieve and maintain high standards of
integrity. Business practice and controls for preventing
and combating corruption are assessed at both
Group-level and business unit-level.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

A summary of fees for audit and non-audit services is
as follows:

BHERRET (#)

AEEHWELHEMEANHE R K
FRERITAZED -EMANSHEFHMAL
AERAEEHBATHRAEIMNERTAS
L UBRARESHEHRE - AR MITE
BRHOEFERMNZFEEEREERME
By B E #1527 o

BB &
FEEFFEARB2ERBIOT ¢

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

R=®B=Z= R-ZBZ—F

Nature of services REHEE +=B=+—H +=ZB=1+-—H

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Audit services BT R A& 12,370 10,593

Non-audit services FEEFTIRIE 1,277 1,603

Total BEtr 13,647 12,196
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING THE REMEBRRNET

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility
for preparing financial statements which give a true and
fair view.

The statement of the auditor of the Company on their

responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

While the Group pursues growth in business, it also
recognises the importance of effectively managing
various risks associated with its operations. The Group
aims to achieve a good balance between risks and
growth by implementing appropriate risk management
and internal control.

The Board has the responsibilities for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

As the insurance business has become Group’s
dominant business, to achieve comprehensive risk
management, the Group conducts risk management and
internal control at the Main Subsidiary level as well as
the Group level, and has built a comprehensive system
for which the Board has ultimate responsibilities, and
the risk management and internal control systems
covering all business lines are supervised directly by the
management and supported by relevant professional
committees with close cooperation of all business
functions.

ORGANISATION

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks
which it is willing to take whilst achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives and maintaining sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems (including
their effectiveness) to safeguard Shareholders’
investments and the Group’s assets.

The board of directors of the Main Subsidiary (the
“Board of Subsidiary”) has established its own audit
committee and board risk committee which are
responsible for overall risk management and internal
control and report to the Board of Subsidiary together
with the management of the Main Subsidiary (the
“Management of Subsidiary”). The Management
of Subsidiary establishes and supervises the risk
management committee which identifies, prevents
and controls various risks and reports to the board
risk committee. The internal audit functions are
conducted by the key management appointed by the
Management of Subsidiary and report to the Audit
Committee. Overall, the Board of Subsidiary reports to
the management of the Group on risk management and
internal audit matters.
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ORGANISATION (Continued)

The internal control system of the Group is mainly
composed of operations, finance, risk management,
information technology, legal, compliance, and audit
functions, which is responsible for the risk management
of non-insurance business.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

Currently, the risk management framework of the Main
Subsidiary includes three lines of defences of the overall
risk management model organized by key business
functions, risk management, compliance and legal, and
internal audit:

The first line of defence is in charged by a team of
highly experienced and competent senior management
from key business functions. In particular, the risk
management policies and procedures are put in place
to safeguard a prudent underwriting policy.

The second line of defence is taken by the risk
management, compliance and legal department, as well
as the board risk committee of the Board of Subsidiary
which manage the respective business risks including
insurance risk, currency exchange risk, investment
and interest rate risk, credit risk, operational risk, and
regulatory and compliance risk.

The third line of defence is maintained by the internal
audit department. The audit committee of the Board
of Subsidiary will oversee and monitor through a
risk-based approach to its work, providing assurance to
the Board of Subsidiary.

At Group level, the industry standard “Three Lines of
Defense” for the management of risks was also adopted,
comprising (1) first line of defence: various business
departments manage risk that they respectively own;
(2) second line of defence: the risk management, legal,
compliance and operation function, which defines
and co-ordinates the operational risk strategy and
framework, and is responsible for the statistics and
reporting of various risks; and (3) third line of defence:
internal and external function provides independent
assurance.
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Corporate Governance Report

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL REVIEW

The review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems is conducted
at least annually. During the Year, the management
of the Group regularly conducted risk assessment
and management, and to review the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The risk
committee of the Board of Subsidiary held 3 meetings
and weekly management meetings were also conducted
to discuss routine risks monitoring. In 2022, various
risks were identified, monitored and reported by risk
management function, legal function and compliance
function. Corresponding measures against those risks
were implemented. The risk management department
implemented the internal audit function at the
Group level and conducted internal audit mainly on
department’s operational risks including description of
existing workflow and cases sampling inspection, which
focuses on the inspection of problems and deficiencies
that have occurred, in addition to tracking and recording
follow-up improvements. For the Main Subsidiary,
internal audit department has conducted internal control
reviews for various business functions throughout the
Year including operational, management information
systems and regulatory compliance reviews. The audit
engagements are performed according to the risk-based
and strategically-aligned audit plan which was approved
by the audit committee of the Board of Subsidiary.
Issues raised for improvement had been identified and
appropriate actions were recommended. The major risks
and benchmarks are set out in Report of the Directors
from pages 62 to 67 of this report.

The Risk Management and Internal Control Reports
were presented to the Audit Committee of the Board for
review in March 2023 and the reports show that as of
the time when the annual review is conducted, all risk
assessment tests and risk monitoring reports showed
stable trends and favorable results and no major risk
incidents or events that have caused significant financial
losses to the Group have been identified. The Audit
Committee of the Board has reviewed the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and considered that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective
and adequate.
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DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is committed to a consistent practice
of timely, accurate and sufficiently details disclosure
of material information about the Group. With the
guidelines of the Company regarding the disclosure of
inside information, the Group has management controls
in place to ensure that potential inside information can
be promptly identified, assessed and escalated for
the attention of the Board to determine the need for
disclosure.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the
Company:

- is well aware of its obligations under the SFO,
the Listing Rules and the overriding principle
that information which is considered as inside
information should be announced promptly when it
is the subject of a decision

- conducts its affairs with close regard to the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the SFC

- informs all Directors, senior management
and related staff of the latest regulations and
requirements according to the letters issued or
announcements published by the SFC and the
Stock Exchange

- has developed procedures and mechanisms for the
disclosure of inside information

- has included in its compliance manual a strict
prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential,
sensitive or inside information, and has
communicated this to all staff

- has established and implemented procedures
for responding to external enquiries about the
Company’s affairs. Only Directors and delegated
management of the Company can act as the
Company’s spokespersons and respond to
enquiries on designated areas
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COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports
to the Chairman and the CEO, and is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and for
facilitating information flows and communications
among Directors as well as with Shareholders and the
management.

Mr. Chan Man Ko, the company secretary of the
Company, has complied with the training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Year.

Shareholders’ Right

How Shareholders Can Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting (“EGM”)

An EGM may be convened by the Directors on
requisition of Shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders or by such Shareholder(s) who made the
requisition (as the case may be) pursuant to section 566
to 568 of the Companies Ordinance and the articles of
association of the Company. The objects of the meeting
must be stated in the requisition which must be signed
by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered
office of the Company. Shareholders should follow
the requirements and procedures as set out in the
Companies Ordinance for convening an EGM.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, Shareholders
representing not less than one-fortieth (2.5%) of the
total voting rights of all Shareholders; or not less
than 50 Shareholders on which there has been paid
up an average sum, per Shareholder, of not less
than HK$2,000, may make requisition in writing for
proposing resolution or business to be dealt with at
the next general meeting. Shareholders should follow
the requirements and procedures as set out in section
615 of the Companies Ordinance for putting forward a
proposal at a general meeting.
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Shareholders’ Right (Continued)

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company
secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Rooms 1803-1806, 18th Floor, China Evergrande
Centre, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2845 9036/(852) 3102 9022
Email: ir@yff.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND DIVIDEND
POLICY

The Company has adopted an updated Shareholders
Communication Policy in 2022 (the “Shareholders
Communication Policy”), and the Board is committed
to provide clear and full performance information of
the Group to the Shareholders. Information will be
communicated to the Shareholders and the Investors
mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim
and annual reports), annual general meetings and
other general meetings that may be convened, as well
as by making available the disclosures submitted to
the Stock Exchange and its corporate communication
and other corporate publications on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. A copy of the
Shareholders Communication Policy is published on the
Company’s website for public information.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual
general meeting and the Chairman and Directors
(including chairman/members of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee) as well as the representative of external
auditor, should attend and answer questions on the
Group’s business at the meeting. All resolutions at
the general meeting are decided by a poll which is
conducted by the Group’s share registrar.

The Group values feedback from the Shareholders on
its effort to promote transparency and foster investor
relationships. Comments and suggestions are always
welcomed.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND DIVIDEND
POLICY (Continued)

Further, the Company has adopted a dividend policy
on 1 January 2019. The Company does not have any
predetermined dividend payout ratio. Declaration,
recommendation and payment of dividends of the
Company is subject to the approval of the Board,
depending on results of operations, working capital,
financial position, future prospects, and capital
requirements, as well as any other factors which the
Board may consider relevant from time to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the Year. The latest version of the
articles of association of the Company is posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Directors submit herewith their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 21 to the financial
statements. An analysis of the revenue and the results
of the Group by business segments during the Year are
set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Detailed business review and future development of
the Company’s business are set out in “Management
Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) section in this
annual report from pages 4 to 21. An analysis of the
Group’s performance during the Year using financial
key performance indictors is also provided in MD&A in
this annual report from pages 4 to 24. Discussions on
the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group and key relationships
with employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders are set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report (“ESG Report”) of this annual
report. MD&A and ESG Report also form part of this
report.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the
risk management practices of the Group are sufficient
to mitigate the risks present in our businesses and
operations as efficiently and effectively as possible. The
Board delegates some of this responsibility to various
operational departments.

The Group’s financial position, operations, business
and prospects may be affected by the following
identified risks and uncertainties. The Group adopts risk
management policies, measures and monitoring systems
to prevent and control the exposures to the identified
risks.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Regulatory risk

Our businesses operate in highly-regulated markets
and our success and operations can be impacted by
changes to the regulatory environment and the structure
of these markets. The Group pays close attention to
financial regulatory and legislative developments of the
markets it operates and actively monitors and consults
with regulators of the markets on changes which could
impact our business. Many of our key businesses are
also subject to direct regulatory oversight and we
are required to maintain the appropriate regulatory
approvals and licenses to operate, and in some
cases adhere to certain stringent financial and capital
covenants.

Insurance risks

The Group prices its insurance products based on
estimated benefit payments reflecting assumptions with
respect to mortality, morbidity, longevity, persistency,
interest rates and other factors. If actual policy
experience emerges that is significantly and adversely
different from assumptions used in product pricing, the
effect could be material to the profitability of the Group.
For participating whole life products, the insurance
company’s dividends to policyholders primarily reflect
the difference between actual investment, mortality,
expense and persistency experience and the experience
embedded in the whole life premiums and guaranteed
elements. The Group also makes use of reinsurance to
mitigate the impact of its underwriting risk.

Market risks

Market risk comes from the changes in market value of
investment exposures, which are caused by changes in
market prices. The Group monitors daily market price
fluctuations and major news with evaluation of their
potential impact on the company, and monitors the
company’s exposure to the risk. Market risks disclosure
and an overview of market risks are provided in weekly
and quarterly reports.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Currency exchange risks

For the main subsidiary of the Group (insurance
business) (the “Main Subsidiary”), the currency
exchange risk is mainly related to certain insurance
policies that are not denominated in United States (U.S.)
dollars and Hong Kong dollars. However, most of the
insurance policies are denominated in U.S. dollars. As
the Main Subsidiary of the Group’s investments are
primarily made in U.S. dollars, coupled with the fact
that the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the U.S. dollar,
management of the Main Subsidiary does not consider
that the currency risk is material.

For investments made in non-U.S. dollars, Main
Subsidiary mitigates currency risk through the use
of cross-currency swaps and forward contracts.
Cross-currency swaps are used to minimize currency
risk for certain non-U.S. dollar assets and liabilities
through a pre-specified exchange of interest and
principal. Forward contracts are used to hedge
movement in exchange rates. In year 2022, HKD
liabilities were closely hedged by currency swaps and
forward contracts and HKD bond.

Investment and interest rate risks

Interest rate risk is the potential for interest rates to
change, which can cause fluctuations in the value of
investments and in the amounts due to policyholders.
To the extent that fluctuations in interest rates cause
the duration of assets and liabilities to differ, the Main
Subsidiary controls its exposure to this risk by, among
other things, asset and liability matching techniques
that account for the cash flow characteristics of the
assets and liabilities. The Main Subsidiary tends to
match dollar duration of the financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income with its
statutory liability dollar duration under current statutory
regime of Hong Kong, to minimize the volatility in the
statutory solvency ratio. Thus it allows a certain level
of mismatch between asset and liability duration under
economic basis. On the other hand, to prepare for the
new risk-based capital regime, the Main Subsidiary has
started lengthening of the asset duration (amortised
cost investment) in the past years and will continue to
maintain its dollar-duration matched position under the
current statutory regime.

After assessment of the ability of the Group to withstand

adverse change in interest rates, the Group’s investment
and interest rate risks are under control.

64

TERMEREERE &)
B & @

SEEEFoR (RRER) (E2FLQF])
MEXEBFIEEFELFFERAEITINRESRS
B BR  AZBREGUXTIRBILEE -
BMEEFEFRAETBUETRE  URE
TREXTHH  FEFRAFAEEERARER
[E B3t FE K o

HREXZARE FTEFLABBEARX
ERERNERSORBEERRR - XX
EREHARBAAEEENANENRER
BEEEERXITEENEBNEZARESR
RE - EHSNARYHIEREFH - E-F
—oHE o BrEEERNLBHERIEN  EH
BRBTESE M -

RERFMZRER

MEREBEANESENTEN  HAEEH
REBENENRESBEASENKE -
RAZRDEHEENEENFEINER -
FEFLRAZRINEENEBENREAEBH
BREENEBTEZMESERRHA -
FEFLARABBIHLEEENERE
BUMEHEEBRITEESETHEERRE
BERFEDBATE  UESRDEEETEE
DREEBENKE - B DA AFELER
RTEENARBFENCBAEE —EREMN
HE -3 —HH REBHOERELRHE
FEFRACRBEBFHEEREERFE
MU ESHREEFROTEEHETNERE
BT EAMR -

RFEAEBEERNRANELEDR -
AEBNRERFEABEEIZS -

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2022



KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Credit risks

Credit risk is the risk that issuers of investments owned
by the Group may default or that other parties may
not be able to pay amounts due to the Group. The
management of the Group’s credit risk mainly focuses
on whether various credit risks are within the scope of
the Group’s institutional regulations and are summarized
in the weekly risk report. The risk management
department prepares separate reports on margins and
trading limits every day. In the context of the quite
volatile stock market this year, it promptly reminded the
business and reduced the margin exposure, avoiding
possible losses from credit risks.

The Main Subsidiary attempts to manage its
investments to limit credit risk by diversifying its
portfolio among various security types and industry
sectors as well as purchasing credit default swaps to
transfer some of the risk if necessary. For year 2022,
there is no active breach in concentration limit nor
industry limit. Considering the resilience of the business
to counterparty default events, the credit risk exposure
is maintained within acceptable levels.

Cyber risks

Cyber risk means any risk of financial loss, disruption or
damage to the reputation of an organization from some
sort of failure of its information technology systems,
mainly including the security of network equipment and
possible external attacks.

For the year of 2022, the top cyber threats under
concerns also includes:

a) Data loss or theft. Confidential or restricted
information has been exposed to an unauthorized
party, internally or externally.

b) Attrition or denial of service. An attempt to make
online service unavailable by overwhelming them
with traffic from multiple sources; attacks that
compromise, degrade, or destroy systems or
networks, over time.

c) Supplier or third party breach. When a third
party that the Group has a business relationship
experiences a breach where the Group’s
confidential or restricted information has been
compromised.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)

Cyber risks (Continued)

d)

Improper usage. Any unauthorized activity
resulting in violation of the Company’s technology
acceptable use policy by an authorized user.

Insider threat. An insider threat can occur
from people who have some level of access to
the Group’s networks, computer system(s) or
data, including: employees, former employees,
contractors, business associates, or anyone who
intentionally misuses that access to negatively
affect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability
of the Group’s information or information systems.

Malware or ransomware. Software that is intended
to damage or disable computers and computer
systems.

Remote working. Unsecured/open Wi-Fi
connections, unattended computers, and data
breaches are just some of the potential negative
impacts the company may experience. Less
information protection awareness, and it’s a
combination that can leave the company vulnerable
to cyber-attacks.

Internet of Things (loT). 1oT is a network of
intertwined devices, software, sensors, and other
‘things’ which enable the world to be connected
throughout physical space. This can include
business software, camera, smart home devices,
or mobile phones. All of these things communicate
with each other without the need for human
interaction. This spider web contains vast amount
of sensitive data and poses serious danger to
information security.

The cyber risk was monitored in 2022, and the risk
management and internal control report in year 2022
showed that the number of incidents was stable and
manageable, the cyber issue was reported, and the
network monitoring had been enforced.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Operational risks

Operational risk is the risk caused by the fact that
actual losses, incurred for inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and operation systems, or from
external events. The sources of operational risk are
relatively wide. System, personnel, process and
other types of problems can lead to operational risks
which may be transformed to other types of risks. It
summarizes the risks a company undertakes when it
attempts to operate within a given field or industry.

The Group reports and tracks various operational risks
that have occurred to ensure the problems are corrected
and resolved. For the potential risks discovered
and recorded, the risk management department has
conducted research and discussion with various
relevant departments on preventive measures and
emergency measures and attempts to avoid unexpected
risk events. Emergency drills for each business line and
support department have been conducted. Solutions for
the problems found were formulated.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year, and the statement
of financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2022 are set out in the financial statements from pages
134 to 139.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year (2021: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the Year are set out in note 42(e) to
the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company as
at 31 December 2022 are set out in note 42(c) to the
financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 350.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed below, the Company, throughout the
Year, did not enter into (i) any agreement that will or
may result in the Company issuing Shares; or (ii) any
agreement requiring the Company to enter into any
agreement specified in (i).

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into
during the Year or subsisting at the end of the Year are
set out below:

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on
28 June 2022 (the “Share Option Scheme”) which has a
life of 10 years from the date of adoption.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is for the
Company to attract, retain and motivate talented
Participants to strive for future developments and
expansion of the Group and to provide it with a flexible
means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the
Participants and for such other purposes as the Board
may approve from time to time.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each participant,
the Board would mainly take into account of the
experience of the participant on the Group’s business,
the length of service of the participant with the Group
(if the participant is an employee or a director of any
member of the Group), the actual degree of involvement
in and/or cooperation with the Group and length of
collaborative relationship the participant has established
with the Group (if the participant is an agent of any
member of the Group), and the amount of support,
assistance, guidance, advice, efforts and contributions
the participant has exerted and given towards the
success of the Group and/or the amount of potential
support, assistance, guidance, advice, efforts and
contributions the participant is likely to be able to give
or make towards the success of the Group in the future.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Company

can grant options to participants for a consideration of
HK$1.00 for each grant payable by the participant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No participant shall be granted an option, if the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all the options granted and to be granted
to such participant under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of
such further grant would exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue unless such further grant has been approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting with the participant
and his associates abstaining from voting.

Where the Board proposes to grant any option to a
participant who is a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or any of their
respective associates, which would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to him in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the
total number of Shares in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the Shares at the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5,000,000,

such proposed grant of options must be approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting. In such a case,
the Company shall send a circular to its Shareholders
containing all those terms as required under the Listing
Rules. The participant concerned and all connected
persons of the Company must abstain from voting in
favour of the resolution at such general meeting and/
or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time. Any vote taken at the meeting
to approve the grant of such options must be taken on
a poll.

Subscription price in respect of each Share issued
pursuant to the exercise of options granted hereunder
shall be a price as determined by the Board in
its absolute discretion but in any case the option
subscription price shall be at least the higher of: (a)
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the share option
offer date, which must be a trading day; and (b) a price
being the average of the closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the share
option offer date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption
date, after which period no further options will be
granted. Subject to the compliance with the provisions
of Chapter 17 under the Listing Rules, the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect, and options which are granted during the
life of the Share Option Scheme may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue. The
period within which the Shares must be taken up under
the option, must not be more than 10 years from the
share option offer date.

According to the Share Option Scheme, the total
number of share options that could be granted is
386,799,167, representing approximately 10% of the
total Shares in issue on the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme (i.e. 28 June 2022) and as of the
date of this report. Details and other principal terms of
the Share Option Scheme are set out in the circular of
the Company dated 2 June 2022.

During the Year, no share options had been granted,
exercised, cancelled, lapsed or outstanding.

SHARE AWARD SCHEMES

The Board had approved the adoption of two share
award schemes on 30 October 2014 (the “2014 Share
Award Scheme”) and 12 December 2016 (the “2016
Share Award Scheme”) respectively.

The purposes of the above share award schemes are
to (i) encourage or facilitate the holding of Shares by
the selected participants; (ii) encourage and retain
such individual to work with the Group; and (iii) provide
additional incentive for them to achieve performance
goals.

The maximum number of shares can be issued or
purchased under the 2016 Share Award Scheme and
the 2014 Share Award Scheme is 10% of the Shares
in issue from time to time (i.e. 386,799,167 Shares,
representing 10% of total issued Shares as at the date
of this report). The total number of Shares which is
available for being further issued under the 2016 Share
Award Scheme and the 2014 Share Award Scheme (i.e.,
353,478,928 Shares) represents 9.14% of total issued
Shares as at the date of this report.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (Continued)
2014 Share Award Scheme

2014 Share Award Scheme is administered by the
administration body and the trustee in accordance with
the rules of the 2014 Share Award Scheme and the
trust deed. Pursuant to 2014 Share Award Scheme,
subject to all relevant applicable terms, conditions
and provisions of the rules relating to the 2014 Share
Award Scheme, the administration body may at its
absolute discretion (a) select or designate any person
to be a selected participant; (b) determine the number
of restricted or unrestricted shares to be granted to
selected participants. Participants includes (i) Group A
participant, any individual being currently employed in
good faith by the Company or any subsidiary and who
is not a connected person (as defined or deemed to
be the case under the Listing Rules) of the Company;
and (ii) Group B participant, means any individual
being a director (including executive and non-executive
director), employee, officer, agent or consultant of the
Company or any subsidiary.

The maximum number of Shares which may be granted
to a selected participant at any one time or in aggregate
may not exceed 10% of the total Shares in issue as at
the date of adoption of 2014 Share Award Scheme (i.e.
30 October 2014) (the “2014 Adoption Date”). Since the
2014 Adoption Date and up to the date of this report, a
total of 9,330,239 Shares have been awarded under the
2014 Share Award Scheme, representing approximately
0.24% of the total Shares in issue as at the date of this
report.

During the Year, no Shares had been awarded under the
2014 Share Award Scheme and no awarded shares had
been vested, cancelled or lapsed. As at 31 December
2022, 26,667 Shares were held by the trustee under the
2014 Share Award Scheme.

2014 Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the earlier
of (i) the expiry of the period of 10 years from the 2014
Adoption Date, or (ii) such date of early termination as
determined by the Board. Details and other principal
terms of the 2014 Share Award Scheme are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 30 October
2014. Further details of the 2014 Share Award Scheme
are set out in Note 43 to the financial statements.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (Continued)
2016 Share Award Scheme

In accordance with the rules of the 2016 Share Award
Scheme, the Board may, from time to time at its
absolute discretion: (i) select any Group A Participant
to be a selected participant and grant share awards
to such selected participant which are to be satisfied
by the new Shares to be subscribed by the trustee
under the Company’s available general mandate on
the relevant grant date or under a specific mandate
approved or to be approved by the shareholders of the
Company (the “Pool A Share Awards”); or (ii) select
any Group B participant to be a selected participant
and grant share awards to such selected participants
which are to be satisfied by the existing Shares
received by the trustee from any shareholder of the
Company or purchased by the trustee (either on-market
or off-market) (the “Pool B Share Awards”). For the
purposes of the 2016 Share Award Scheme, a Group
A Participant can also be a Group B Participant if so
selected by the Board. If an individual is at the same
time a Group A Participant and a Group B Participant,
the Board may, at its absolute discretion, grant to
such individual Pool A Share Awards or Pool B Share
Awards or a combination of both. Among them, Group
A Participant means any individual who is an employee,
officer, agent or consultant of the Company or any
subsidiary who is not a connected person (as defined or
deemed to be the case under the Listing Rules) of the
Company; and if the administration body so determines
in its absolute discretion, any director (including
executive and non-executive director) of the Company
or any subsidiary; and (ii) Group B Participant means
any individual being a director (including executive and
non-executive director), employee, officer, agent or
consultant of the Company or any subsidiary.

TMF Trust (HK) Limited (“TMF Trustee”) and Bank
of Communications Trustee Limited (“BoCom
Trustee”) have been appointed as the trustees for the
administration of the 2016 Share Award Scheme. TMF
Trustee shall hold the Shares for the benefit of the
selected participants who are not connected persons
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company.
BoCom Trustee shall hold the Shares for the benefit of
the selected participants who are connected persons of
the Company. BoCom Trustee and/or TMF Trustee shall
not be entitled to exercise any voting rights in respect
of any Shares held under the trusts.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (Continued)
2016 Share Award Scheme (Continueqd)

Since the date of adoption of 2016 Share Award
Scheme (i.e. 12 December 2016) (the “2016 Adoption
Date”) and up to the date of this report, 9,330,239
Shares have been awarded pursuant to the 2014 Share
Award Scheme while 43,040,000 Shares have been
awarded pursuant to the 2016 Share Award Scheme, in
aggregate representing about 1.35% of the total Shares
in issue as at the date of this report.

During the Year, no Shares had been awarded under the
2016 Share Award Scheme. As at 31 December 2022,
15,395,000 Shares were held by TMF Trustee under the
2016 Share Award Scheme.

The 2016 Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the
earlier of (i) the expiry of the period of ten (10) years
from the 2016 Adoption Date; or (ii) such date of early
termination as determined by the Board. Details and
other principal terms of the 2016 Share Award Scheme
are set out in the announcements of the Company dated
12 December 2016, 11 January 2017 and 24 January
2017. Further details of the 2016 Share Award Scheme
are set out in Note 43 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report are:

Chairman

Mr. Yu Feng (Non-executive Director)

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Xin (appointed as Interim Chief Executive
Officer on 28 September 2022)

Mr. Cheung David (resigned on 28 September 2022)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Adnan Omar Ahmed

Mr. Michael James O’Connor

Ms. Hai Olivia Ou (re-designated as non-executive
Director on 3 August 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Qi Daqging

Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard
Mr. Xiao Feng
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with article 103(A) of the Company’s
articles of association, Ms. Hai Olivia Ou, Mr. Chu
Chung Yue, Howard and Mr. Qi Daqing shall retire
by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors a confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules in respect of the Year and the Company considers
that they are independent.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no change in the information of the Directors
that is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the publication of
the Company’s 2022 interim report and up to the date
of this report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of directors who have served on the boards
of the subsidiaries of the Company during the Year and
up to the date of this report included: Yu Feng, Huang
Xin, Hai Olivia Ou, Qi Daging, Adnan Omar Ahmed, Yip
Ka Lin Victor, Chan Man Ko, Ng Yu Lam Kenneth, Liu
Shu-Yen, Xu Jinghui, Lee Siu Chuen, Wong Gah Jih, Yu
Tin Yau Elvin, Tse Chi hung, Liu Zhiguang, Leung Pui
Hong, Ku Sangi, Gao Ariana Jiasui, Zhou Haigen, Zhang
Ting, Jiao Qi, Wang Jing', Li Wenjia', Brian Eden’, Neil
Gray', Cheung David?, He Shigiang?, Wong Yin Hing?,
Dai Shuyan?, Liu Shaojie?, and Ng Shan Yung?.

Notes:

1. Companies in which they serve as directors are incorporated
in places other than Hong Kong

2. No longer directors of the subsidiaries as at the date of this
report

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company which requires the Company to give a period
of notice of more than one year, or to pay compensation
or make other payments equivalent to more than one
year’s emolument.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short
positions of each director of the Company and
chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code under the Listing Rules, or known to the
Company, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the
Company and the underlying Shares:

Report of the Directors
EEERE

EERFRITHRAERARDAHEM
HBEE 2R - HERGRESF
BEzRaR HXKR

RZZZZH+ZA=+—-H A2FZE
ERERTHRAERA QA RNEAMHEEE
B (EERESRPEMRGIEXVER) 2RO
HERORESHPHEAECEHERAQFA AR
BRERBEEHE2RFE 2ELMA -
N ERIEREZF R A ERGIEXVE £ AR A
THEREEFAMERDARBRT  HAD
AEHE2EERARWMT ¢

REQRAEBREREBARG Z2HR

Number of Shares held

FrsR% 8B
Percentage
of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interests Long position  shareholding
BExps 50/ ERtE 3} ERESL
Mr. Yu Feng (note 1) Held by controlled corporation/ 1,827,641,279 47.25%
Corporate interest

%% (Bat1) MEEFZESE FEER
Note: HiaE -
1. Mr. Yu Feng, the Chairman of the Group and a non-executive 1. NREBFFEEARADNIEHITESEER LLE

Director, is deemed to be interested in 1,827,641,279
Shares under the SFO through Jade Passion, a company
of which 73.21% of its issued share capital is owned by
Key Imagination Limited (“Key Imagination”). 91% of the
issued share capital of Key Imagination is owned by Yunfeng
Financial Holdings Limited (“YFHL”), 70.15% of the issued
share capital of which in turn, is owned by Mr. Yu Feng.

EHEBEBARAT
SSii

RIEE SR BERH IR B EBJade Passion
Limited ([ Jade Passion ) #1,872,641,279
IR A% 17 7R #E 5 #£ 25 - Key Imagination Limited
(TKey Imagination |) #EBJade Passion2 17
BARZ73.21%  EHRSHERERAT ([E8
LRI ) #EKey ImaginationB TR A2
9% MEHRLTEEEEHIHMERDBTR
K270.15% °
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Long positions in the shares and the underlying
shares of associated corporations:

BEENFTETHAERARQATHEM
HEEZE2R#G HERORESFH
BEZRER BKE (&)

REBEEROREEARGZEFR

Number of Shares held in
Associated Corporation

REBEEFREROEE
Percentage
Name of Associated Capacity/Nature of Long of
Corporation Name of Director Interests position shareholding
HEEEEE EEpnE B EME ¥r BRESK
Yunfeng Financial Mr. Yu Feng Beneficial owner/ 94 70.15%
Holdings Limited Beneficial interest
ERTHERBRAT E#XLE BRERAS
BEmfEsd
Key Imagination Limited Mr. Yu Feng (Note 1) Held by controlled 9,100 91%
corporation/
Corporate interest
Key Imagination Limited &8 5% (A1) MZEHEERE
B R
Mr. Huang Xin (Note 2) Held by controlled 900 9%
corporation/
Corporate interest
BELE (WiF2) HMEZEFEEFE
EE R
Jade Passion Limited Mr. Yu Feng (Note 1) Held by controlled 7,321 73.21%

corporation/
Corporate interest

Jade Passion Limited EE T (K1) HSEFEEEE
EE RS
Notes: Kzt -
1. Mr. Yu Feng, the Chairman of the Group and a non-executive 1. AEEFFERAQRIAFFTESTER TE

Director, was interested in 9,100 shares, representing 91%
of equity interest in Key Imagination through YFHL, the
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Yu Feng was
also interested in 7,321 shares, representing 73.21% of
equity interest in Jade Passion through Key Imagination.
Both Key Imagination and Jade Passion are substantial
shareholders of the Company.

2. Mr. Huang Xin, an executive Director, is the sole shareholder

of Perfect Merit Limited which owns 900 shares, representing
9% of the equity interest in Key Imagination.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022,
none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company and/or any of their respective associates had
any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and/or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the Model
Code adopted by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, at no
time during the Year was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries or associated corporations, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors (including their
respective spouses and children under the age of 18)
to acquire benefits by the means of the acquisition of
the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporations.

EHOREBERAT
—B-—EEH
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BEENFTETHAERARQATHEM
HEEZE2R#G HERORESFH
BEZRER BKE (&)

REXFHEEN R-ZEBE-__F+-A
=t+—H BMEBEAQRIESRETETHAE
R/ REARESECHBEATRAEALITR
SREFMEEEIE (EE2REERBEK
BIEXVER) 2 R0 - HEBR O RESFFHHEER
&ﬂaﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁjmmﬁ 55 K HI S R
EIRIFTFEZ2ELMA  HERIEFSF R
EROIEXVERR A D B R 2 ZESFRIE A
é¢®7&¥xﬁzﬁﬁﬁmﬁ°

EEWERG 2ER

BRAREEMIBOAFEEN  ARFHHE
R B 1 B SRAR B R BB AT M AR = BF -
HSESE (BRRESAZEBRIBEUT
FR)AEBARRRAREMEE 2RO K
HEROHEZMER -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company was notified
of the following substantial Shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests, being 5% or more of issued Shares
and recorded in the register kept under Section 336 of

FTERRRAEMALIRRG 2ER

R-ZE=

F+ZHA=+—H8 XA TEH

ETHEERRREMALELS  BREE
ZRBMERHENBHRFE2ETHMAELD

REBRITRO PRI U L2 -

the SFO.

Number of Shares held

FrsRBBE

Long Percentage of

Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interests position  shareholding
TERRMES 51/ RntE ¥R EREDHL
Mr. Yu Feng (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation/ 1,827,641,279 47.25%
Corporate interest
E#EE (Hit1) MEEFZESE LEER
Yunfeng Financial Holdings Limited Held by controlled corporation/ 1,827,641,279 47.25%
(Note 1) Corporate interest
ERSRERERAR (ME1) MEEFZESE FEER
Key Imagination Limited (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation/ 1,827,641,279 47.25%
Corporate interest
Key Imagination Limited (#/z#1) HMERHEEEE LEER
Jade Passion Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner/Beneficial interest 1,827,641,279 47.25%
Jade Passion Limited (#7:%7) BEREBA/BRER
Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Held by controlled corporation/ 960,000,000 24.82%
Company (Note 2) Corporate interest
Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance MEEHEEEE LEER
Company (#1i#2)
MassMutual International LLC (Note 2) Beneficial owner/Beneficial interest 960,000,000 24.82%

MassMutual International LLC (#7:%2)

EREEA BEED

Notes:

1. Mr. Yu Feng, the Chairman of the Group and a non-executive
Director, is deemed to be interested in 1,827,641,279
Shares under the SFO through Jade Passion, a company
of which 73.21% of its issued share capital is owned by
Key Imagination. 91% of the issued share capital of Key
Imagination is owned by YFHL, 70.15% of the issued share
capital of which in turn, is owned by Mr. Yu Feng.

2. Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company was
interested in 960,000,000 Shares through its 100%
controlled corporation “MassMutual International LLC”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022,
there were no other persons who had an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under divisions 2 and 3 of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
(i) to which the Company, its holding company or any of
their subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or
his connected entities was materially interested, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the
Year or at the end of the Year, nor (ii) between the
Company, or one of its subsidiaries, and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
had any interest in a business that competed or was
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group, other than being a director of
the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following persons, among others, are connected
person of the Company:

- MMI, which holds approximately 24.82% of the
issued Shares, and hence a substantial shareholder
and a connected person of the Company under
Rule 14A.07 (1) of the Listing Rules;

- MMLIC, the sole shareholder of MMI, and hence
an associate of MMI and a connected person of
the Company under Rule 14A.13 (1) of the Listing
Rules; and

- Barings LLC, a limited liability company organized
in the State of Delaware, the U.S.A. and an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of MMLIC, and hence
an associate of MMI and a connected person of
the Company under Rule 14A.13 (1) of the Listing
Rules.

EHOREBERAT
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EEHEYHEAHTEREAESR AR
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EERBRFERB 2ER

RER BEESFHBEEHEA(EER L
MHRA) N EER ARG EAEBERET
HESEERF2XBPEAES  HKRE
EADRAM ZEFLRDNESRKRSD -

HEXZREEARERS
THAT(EAPERE) AR DANEEAL

BOTRAEAY
Lt R A
ERRKEE

- MMIEHEAXQ27TE

24.82% » A It R &
14A.07(WR B AR QXTI E
Dt

- MMLIC ' EMMIfIME — R - Bt R E
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Group conducted the following transactions which
constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company that are not exempt from annual reporting
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
in respect of which a circular dated 21 December
2017 (the “2017 Circular”), an announcement dated
15 November 2019 (the “2019 Announcement”), an
announcement dated 30 December 2020 (the “2020
Announcement”) and an announcement dated 12
November 2021 (the “2021 Announcement”) were
issued.

1. Barings Investment Advisory Agreement and
Renewal of Barings Investment Advisory

Agreement

Parties: Barings LLC and YF Life
HESPIE Barings LLCK B @R &
Date: 15 December 2017
B =F-t#t+=At+EA

Principal terms:

BEXZREEARERS (M)

RAFERBERAKREAY  AEHETT
IRG  BREXRZBRAKEREXZ LEE
REETLTRAUZVAENFERERE -
YERZEREZR-ZE-—tF+=-A=+—
BBEEBR ((ZE-—tFBR])  R=F
—NF+-—A+EABEHRAE(=ZF-NF
RE) RZZBZFFF_RF=THEEL
F(=ZZEZFFQAFNUARR=-ZF=—

T—A+ZRBEAES(=F=—F2&] -

1. BEREFAGBERBETFERERN
1 &

Pursuant to the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement, YF Life agreed to

engage Barings LLC as its investment adviser to acquire, manage, service
and dispose of investments for YF Life. The assets and the type and amount
of assets to be managed by Barings LLC pursuant to the Barings Investment
Advisory Agreement will be determined by the investment committee of YF Life.

The initial term of the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement commenced
from the 16 November 2018 and has expired on 15 November 2021. The
Barings Investment Advisory Agreement will be automatically renewed for
successive one-year terms. Either party may terminate the Barings Investment
Advisory Agreement upon 30 days’ written notice to the other party. Following
the initial term of the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement, and subject
to the satisfactory performance of Barings LLC, the relevant expertise and
the pricing terms, Barings LLC shall continue to be the preferred manager
of YF Life’s fixed income investment portfolio. The Company shall re-assess
the investment needs of YF Life closer to the expiry of the initial term of the
Barings Investment Advisory Agreement and if the Company considers the
continued provision of such services by Barings LLC to YF Life to be beneficial
to YF Life, the term of the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement may be
extended. The Company will re-comply with the applicable requirements under
the Listing Rules as and when the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement
is renewed after the expiry of the initial term. Subsequent to the initial term,
the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement was automatically renewed for
an additional year, subject to Automatic Renewal thereafter (“Renewal of
Barings Investment Advisory Agreement”). For details please refer to the 2021

Announcement.

The Barings Investment Advisory Agreement was negotiated by the Company,
YF Life and MMI on an arm’s length basis and entered into on normal

commercial terms.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND BEXZRFEBERS (&)
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
1. Barings Investment Advisory Agreement and 1. TZEREZHGBREITTEZRERSH
Renewal of Barings Investment Advisory W& (&)

Agreement (Continued)

EEMHRMN

Pricing terms:

EEFAK

EHEBEBARAT
SSii

REBEREZAMLS  BEBERKESZEBarings LLORHREARMME - HEBR
bl s - B HE&'%?’FDJ‘EEEE c RIBFBEREFZ AW HEMABarings LLCEENE
Eﬁﬁi%ﬁéﬂ’ﬂiﬁﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁ EBEHBBERBRREZEERE -

GEREZABENADD EHHE%E Z-N\E+—-A+"BRE-ZZB=—F+—
JEH'_’EEIE/% FERER ﬂTﬁJ’J%EEEﬁJnaH@ﬁ* FofE—F @ HE M
ﬁSOfiﬁLiﬂé JJ:?HZ%\,% EAE REZREZANMBULSERE R
E—rBarmgs LLC;%TJE - EEEMAERREBER EIJBarmgs LLCrE# &
%%Lﬁ IEHﬂlﬁﬂx‘éﬁﬂA APABREBELFERERAH: ?ﬂ*ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ
H-:E%ﬁ&ﬁ%tﬁ@Z?x émg B4R F ”%Barlngs LLCEBBRRIFE
REEERESSHERRREN  BEREFZAHEEHIER -EHERE
‘*R*’lﬂﬁ%%%ﬂ*iﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁ S NN TﬂﬁiéﬁﬁL—rtmfﬁﬂulﬁTE’JﬁﬁﬁﬁE °
%ﬂ*iﬁﬁﬁﬁé“ ERERAGE Eﬁ@]ﬁﬁ%nsﬁ FHZUBEBER (&R
FEREZAMZE] - FBFEZHAERQAT=—F g

BEREBABBDEARRT - BERBREMMIZ A FEEEBILIZE BB XK

EhiT 3
FREJL

YF Life will pay to Barings LLC fees calculated at rates based on asset type.
The fee rates range from 0.25 basis points to 100 basis points. Such fee rates
were determined based on arm’s length negotiations taking into account (i) the
type of assets to be managed by Barings LLC and (ii) preferred partner status
granted by the Company to MMI under the Strategic Cooperation Agreement.

The Company has assessed the business needs of YF Life for the services
under the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement. The Company considered (i)
the historical amounts of fees paid by YF Life to Barings LLC; (ii) the historical
fee rates charged by Barings LLC; and (iii) the fee rates for comparable services
offered by two other competent independent third party service providers
which the Company considered to be fair and representative given that such
independent third party service providers offer comparable investment advisory
services to clients in Hong Kong. The Company considers that the fee rates
offered by Barings LLC are in line with the market rates offered by other
competent independent third party providers for comparable services as a
whole.

EERKEEOBarings LLCXNEREERRRERTENER - EXNF0.25(@
HEZ100@E T - EEAEXRNZEE() Barings LLCEEMNEEER R ()AD TR
BERSEHEOMMBTFTHNELESERH U ELATEREE -

AABEHEBEREZANBE T REHEBRB2EBLETE - Z!—"D\T%J%E'J(l)
BBRMmOBarings LLCXfF2EL B A €% ; (i) Barings LLCEIK 2 B &£ &R

Ri)EMMRBEELE=FHERIRRM Z—Iﬁttixﬂﬁi%%iz(ﬁﬂﬁ(‘uiﬁl%—
FREHCENEEEAEFRETHEREZARYE XA ARALBBLAFR
BER&xM) o N1 AFE KBarings LLCR H Z%T%?Eﬁ\ﬁ{&ﬁﬂﬁkﬁ_”_ﬁﬁ\ﬁ
%ET%Z?E%EZAE—EQ°
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND

BEXZREEARERS (M)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

1.

Barings Investment Advisory Agreement and 1.
Renewal of Barings Investment Advisory

BEREBABBRAIBEREHEN
1ih & (#)

Agreement (Continued)

Reasons for the
transaction:

RZEH :

Annual caps:

FELR:

In connection with underwriting insurance policies, YF Life invests policy
premium, to generate sufficient return for satisfying future insurance claims
and dividend obligations. Barings LLC has assisted YF Life in executing its
long term investment asset allocation strategies since the year 2000. The
continuation of Barings LLC’s asset management services will not only avoid
the operational risks resulting from contracting a new asset manager but will
also avoid any material disruptions in the execution of YF Life’s long term asset
allocation strategies.

RERREMS  BERBREARE  UELERUENRRRBEFEUR 24
BEEMEH - Barings LLCE-—ZZZEFE—HHBEBEBRRBUTERPRESE
EBERE - Barings LLCEEEERBNSES T ETRREHERELETY
ERNEERRE  TUR2EBBERRRVBEERERKIATHENETMERPE -

The maximum aggregate annual amount of fees payable by YF Life to Barings
LLC for the years ending 31 December 2021, 31 December 2022, 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2024 shall not exceed the caps set out below:

BE-_ZE-_ -+ -BA=+—-H ZEB-Zf+ZBA=+-H -ZE2E-=F+4+=C
B=+—HBEZZ-_NE+ZA=1+BHLEE BERKE{IBarings LLCH &
EEEEBRABETESEBTI LR

Proposed Annual Cap for the Year Ending 31 December

(HKD’000)
BET-RA=+-HLEENRBZFELR
(F#7)
2021 2022 2023 2024
—EC--F —EC-CE —EC-Z=E —E-_NE
Total fees ERss 111,000 122,000 138,000 155,000

The aggregate amount paid by the Group in respect of,
the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement and the
Renewal of the Barings Investment Advisory Agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2022 is approximately
HK$83,921,000 (being 69% of the annual cap for 2022.

All the independent non-executive Directors, having
reviewed the transactions under the Barings Investment
Advisory Agreement and the Renewal of the Barings
Investment Advisory Agreement (the “2022 CCTs”),
confirmed that such transactions had been entered into
(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(c) according to the respective agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholder as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The Company has engaged its external auditor to report
on the 2022 CCTs in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Based on the work performed, the
external auditor of the Company has confirmed in its
letter to the Board that nothing has come to its attention
which caused it to believe that:

(i) the 2022 CCTs have not been approved by the
Board;

(i) the 2022 CCTs were not entered into, in all
materials respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions;

(iii) the aggregate amount paid by the Group in respect
of the 2022 CCTs has exceeded the annual cap of
2022 as disclosed in the 2019 Announcement and
2020 Announcement.

During the Year, the Group did not have any connected
transactions that were subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

A summary of all related parties transactions entered
into by the Group during the Year is contained in Note
46 to the financial statements. All the related parties
transactions described in the said note do not fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” under the Listing Rules, other
than transactions under the the Barings Investment
Advisory Agreement and the Renewal of the Barings
Investment Advisory Agreement as described in Note 46
which falls under the definition of “continuing connected
transaction” under the Listing Rules and was disclosed
previously by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules with respect to the connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND MAJOR
CUSTOMERS

During the Year, revenue derived from the Group’s 5
largest customers accounted for approximately 1.24%
of the total revenue for the Year, with the single largest
customer contributing approximately 0.42%.

The Group is a provider of financial services. In the
opinion of the Board, it is therefore of no value to
disclose details of the Group’s suppliers.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, none of the
Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the issued Shares, had an interest in the major
customers.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, no charitable donations is made by the
Group (2021: nil).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Information on the
corporate governance practice of the Company is set
out in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual
report.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision as set out in the
articles of association of the Company that provides
for indemnity against liability incurred by directors and
executive officers of the Group is currently in force and
was in force throughout the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this report, there was sufficient public
float of the Company’s securities as required under the
Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been
audited by KPMG who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution
for reappointment of KPMG will be proposed for
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee
comprised three independent non-executive Directors.
The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Chu Chung Yue,
Howard with Mr. Qi Daging and Mr. Xiao Feng being
the other members. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are in line with the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

By order of the Board
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited

Huang Xin
Executive Director and Interim Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE  #HERERBS

ABOUT THIS REPORT
Our Business

Listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Main Board,
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited principally engages
in the provision of insurance products through YF Life,
as well as other financial services covering brokerage,
investment research, corporate finance, asset and
wealth management, employee stock ownership plan
administration services and fintech business, etc.

Through YF Life, we are authorized by the Insurance
Authority to conduct long-term insurance business in
Hong Kong. Based in Hong Kong with branch offices in
Macao, we provide a wide range of insurance products,
including life insurance, medical insurance, annuities,
pension, and mandatory provident fund schemes. YF
Life is one of the first (and few) insurance companies to
introduce annuities in the region.

Reporting Reference

Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (the “Company”,
and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is
committed to incorporating sustainability factors into
our governance structure and investment, and delivering
sustainable returns to our shareholders.

To communicate our efforts on environmental, social,
and governance (“ESG”) matters, this Environmental,
Social and Governance report (“ESG Report”) has
been prepared in accordance with “comply or explain”
provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide set out in
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)
Reporting Reference (Continued)
In the preparation of this ESG Report, the Group follows

the four reporting principles as set out in the ESG
Guide:

RE  #HERERRE

BRABE (4)
BEBE (&

EREIARE HERERABRER  A&H
BRET(RE HERERREEIDFRE
AYPUIEE SRR A o

Reporting principles  Materiality Quantitative Balance Consistency
B &R A EEf Eft T —HH
Application in this Material ESG issues The Group accounts for This ESG Report aims The Group adopts

ESG Report

EARE -HERER
BRETHEA

EEB

were identified through
materiality assessment
and prioritised with
inputs from the Group’s
stakeholders. These
issues are reflected in
this ESG Report.

EMFERE
KB HERERS
- IREAKEA G

and discloses ESG key
performance indicators
(“KPIs™) quantitatively
to evaluate the
effectiveness of ESG
policies and strategies.

AEENECLAREAN

RERE HERER
BREWEE ([KPIs]) -

to disclose data in a
transparent manner,
providing stakeholders
an unbiased overview
of the Group' s overall
ESG performances with
both achievements and
areas of improvements.

PRERE - SEQA

consistent methodology
in compiling ESG data
reported in previous
years to allow for a
meaningful comparison
of ESG performance
over time. Any updates
in the methods or KPIs
used are disclosed.

AR HERERGEE AKERA-HNALE

GREEEPYIES AN

REBENSRETER NRERSR HERE
B5 o ELEHERM RBRMRBEAA M -
EARS HERER

BET e

Scope and Boundary of the ESG report

This ESG Report covers the ESG policies and
performance of the Group’s operation in all jurisdictions
for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2022. The boundary of the ESG Report covers our
dominant insurance business under YF Life and other
non-insurance financial services, including brokerage,
investment research, corporate finance, asset and
wealth management, employee stock ownership plan
administration services, and fintech business.

The scope of this ESG Report primarily covers all offices
of the Group in Hong Kong S.A.R. (“Hong Kong”),
Macao S.A.R. (“Macao”), and the Mainland of People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”). The reported ESG data
cover offices of the Group below:

- Two Company offices in Hong Kong and Shenzhen;

- Fifteen YF Life offices and one warehouse in Hong
Kong; and

- Five YF Life branch offices in Macao.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE  #HERERBS

ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)
Contact

We welcome your comments and feedback regarding
the content of this ESG Report, the reporting approach,
and our ESG performance. Please share your views at:
ir@yff.com.

OUR APPROACH TO ESG
ESG Governance and Risk Management

The Board is ultimately accountable for the performance
of ESG-related issues by evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks which it is willing to
take whilst achieving the Group’s strategic objectives
and maintain sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems (including reviewing their
effectiveness) to safeguard Shareholder’s investments
and the Group’s assets.

The risk management function of the Group consists
of a defined management structure. The board of
directors of the Main Subsidiary of the Group (insurance
business) (the “Board of Subsidiary”) has established
its own audit committee and board risk committee,
which provides practical guidelines and support on risk
management and internal control, and regularly report to
the Board of Subsidiary together with the management
of the main subsidiary (“Management of Subsidiary”) of
the Group. The risk management committee established
by the Management of Subsidiary is responsible for
continuous identification, monitoring, and reporting
various risks to the board risk committee. Management
of Subsidiary authorises the key management to
supervise the internal audit functions and report to the
audit committee for identified control weakness. Overall,
the Board oversees the implementation and supervision
of the risk management and internal audit matters of
the Group, which the Board of Subsidiary reports to the
management of the Yunfeng Financial Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OUR APPROACH TO ESG (Continued)
ESG Governance and Risk Management (Continued)

The internal control system is supervised by the senior
management of the Group, including executive directors
together with heads of business functions composed
of operations, finance, risk management, information
technology, legal, and compliance, which is responsible
for the regular review of the overall risk management
and effectiveness of control of non-insurance business.

As we are primarily engaged in the financial and
insurance service sector, we are required to comply
with all related laws and regulations, including the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance and the
Insurance Ordinance, etc. The overall governance effort
is led by senior management of the Group, including
executive directors together with heads of business
functions, and implemented primarily through our
operations, finance, risk management, information
technology, legal, and compliance teams.

The Group adopts a top-down approach in managing
ESG issues. As the highest authority of the Group, the
Board is responsible for reviewing and managing the
Group’s strategic objectives, activities, and performance
in relation to ESG and risk management. To effectively
manage our ESG-related issues, coordinators from
insurance and non-insurance businesses work closely
with different departments to identify and manage
ESG-related issues and collect quantitative and
qualitative information to prepare the ESG report. The
coordinators report directly to management and the
Board to ensure the Group’s ESG performances are
aligned with relevant goals and targets. To safeguard
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets, the
Board reviews its risk management and internal control
systems effectiveness on an ongoing basis to ensure
they can meet and deal with the ever-changing business
environment.

As regards the details of corporate governance, please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report section of the
Group’s Annual Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE -HERERRSE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MEHEEEEREE E MM
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group recognises the importance of interacting AREBEZSHINEANFZHEEIRANEEN »
with stakeholders as a vital part of our business EREERRRENEFRNEE—B - BT E
development and strategy. To better understand their TS HEEERMABRE HE2RES
expectations and concerns on our ESG approach, FEWNEEHMNE I RPCHBEREESSE -
we regularly engage our key stakeholders through BRI RRELZZEERREETERNRG
multiple communication channels, such as meetings, HEERRE HIZBTHELMT :

performance reviews, exhibitions and etc. Their key
concerns are summarised as follow:

Summary of stakeholders’ communication channels MNEHEEERBERE 2B

Communication and feedback

Stakeholder groups channels Frequency Topics of discussion
AERBEER BERRERE RE REES:]
Employees e Meetings *  Monthly Talent attraction, development,
*  Performance reviews o Annually and retention
¢ Internal email correspondences o Event-driven basis
ET o 82 ¢ 8A AFRE - BERHRE
v EEHE ' 5F
o AFEHAR o BHEBEE
Shareholders e Annual general meetings (“AGM”), ¢ Annually for AGM Business development
extraordinary general meetings o Event-driven basis for other Financial performance
(“EGM7) channels Corporate governance
¢ Announcements, annual reports, Major corporate actions and
interim reports, circulars transactions
& « BRBEAS(RREFAE) . -« SEERARREFAS EBRRE
BREHAE (RREHAE]) o HURBZBHBHEE  BBERR
o DECFH PHRERBR rEER
IRRATHRRS
Regulators ¢ Correspondence mails/emails ¢ Event-driven basis Compliance with regulations
*  Phone calls Business updates
o Site visits
BB o BH#/EBER o BHEHEE BFiER
v BE EBES
¢ BHRER
Clients *  Know-your-client (KYC) onboarding ¢ Meeting/phone call, emails  Product and trading system
process on event-driven basis quality and development
o Face-to-face meetings with our ¢ Electronic trading platform  Fajr and transparent dealing
business representatives on event-driven basis practice
*  Phone calls and emails with our Enterprise branding
client service representatives
BF o THREFIIBRRE o BEREDEECEE/ ERRRSFAEZRERE
o HEXBRRZAHEEE g5 BE DNYER RSB
o HEFRBARCEZREFAR o HSHEHEELEIRS LXK
Fa

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued)

Summary of stakeholders’ communication channels
(Continued)

Communication and feedback

RE  #HERERRE

N EEEEREEEEFE @)

N EREEBBEBERE MM (A&

Stakeholder groups channels Frequency Topics of discussion
NERREEE BERRERE AR HEES:]
Business partners o On-site visits o Event-driven basis Business development
o Meetings Fair business practice and
o Conference calls market reputation
Sound financial strength and
management
BEBH o BHEE o BHEHEE EBERR
o B3 DYBEEARTSEE
o EFEE ez BtiER
Media o Press releases o Event-driven basis Business development and
o Marketing campaigns strategies
e Exhibitions Product and service promotion
R o HER o BHBRHEE EBRRREEK
o EHEH EmRRHEE
o RE
Communities o On-site visits o Event-driven basis Policy and commitment to
o Meetings communities
HE o BMAR o BHEDEE B 2 R RAEGE
o B3
Materiality assessment EEMFTM

We value stakeholders’ concerns and views on our
sustainable development and therefore we conducted
interviews and surveys to identify the ESG-related
priorities to our operations. The results are reviewed
regularly in response to significant changes in our
operating environment and updates on ESG reporting
standards, to ensure the topics identified align our
business operations.

With no significant changes to the Group’s businesses
and across the industry, we continue to consider
the overall social aspects to be more material than
environmental aspects, with the most important issues
being anti-corruption, customer privacy, and the health
and safety of our employees. Moving forward, the Group
will continue to engage with our stakeholders regularly
to identify ESG risks and opportunities in relation to our
business operations, and monitor any changes in the
sustainability reporting trends.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE  #HERERBS

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE

The Group views employees as its most valuable
assets. We strive to create a diverse, inclusive, safe
and positive working environment where everyone
can excel and achieve business goals. The Group is
committed to maintaining the workplace with fairness
and respectfulness. The Employee Handbooks of
the Group and YF Life govern our human resources
practices, which documents guidelines and conditions
of employment, promotion, benefits and remuneration,
training and development, and business conduct in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

Employment
Talent recruitment and retention

To attract and retain talents, we provide our employees
with comprehensive welfare and benefit packages,
including share option and share award schemes,
retirement, and medical benefits, insurance coverage,
and leave entitlement commensurate to market
standards.

The Group believes that contributions by each employee
counts to our success. We recognise the importance of
sharing the success and reward the individuals based
on their annual appraisal. We also provide unparalleled
career development opportunities, such as internal
mobility program, such that our employees can leverage
their full potential and gain exposure to work with
different teams and clients.

Diversity and equal opportunity

The Group values a diverse workforce as it enables
us to access a greater range of talents and produce
impactful results for our stakeholders. We strictly
observe the regulations stated in our equal employment
opportunity policy to guarantee employees’ basic
rights. We strictly observe the regulations stated in
our equal employment opportunity policy and adhere
to fair and impartial human resources management
practices in areas such as recruitment, promotion,
salary administration and training opportunities. All
employment decisions are made based on bona fide
occupational requirements. We strictly prohibit any
form of discrimination, harassment, bias or prejudice of
employees and job candidates due to their gender, age,
disability, family status, race or marital status and other
statuses protected by local laws.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(Continued)

Employment (Continued)
Diversity and equal opportunity (Continued)

We encourage employees to report suspected
non-compliance and violations to the Human Resources
Department through designated whistle-blowing
channels without fear of reprisal. Upon receipt of the
suspected case, a thorough investigation shall be
carried out without disclosing the whistle-blower’s
identity. Shall any cases be confirmed as violations,
appropriate disciplinary action would be taken
accordingly or even termination of employment.

To encourage better leadership and corporate
governance, the Group adopted a board diversity
policy since October 2013, which clearly outlines
our commitment to non-discrimination and equal
opportunity. Our diversity policy guides us to achieve
board diversity by considering of a number of factors,
including professional qualifications and experience,
cultural and educational background, race and ethnicity,
gender, age, and length of service. For further details,
please refer to the Corporate Governance Report
section of the Group’s Annual Report.

Labour Practices

The Group has zero tolerance towards all forms of
child, illegal and forced labour practices. We are
committed to strict compliance with all applicable
laws and regulations in the respective jurisdictions,
including Employment of Children Regulations and other
regulations under the Employment Ordinance of Hong
Kong. All job candidates are required to provide valid
personal identification documents during the recruitment
process for verification purpose.

During the reporting period, we were not aware of
any material non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to human rights.
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RE  #HERERBS

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(Continued)

Our Workforce

As at 31 December 2022, we have 605 employees in
total, 603 of which were full time and 2 were part-time.
524 of which were located in Hong Kong, 39 in Macao
and 42 in the People’s Republic of China.

A breakdown by gender, geographical region, age group
and employment type are shown below:

By gender
gl

52.56%

= Female = Male
pegd B4

By age group
A

11.24%

19.34%

69.42%
= Aged below 30 = Aged 30-50
30LAT 30-50
= Aged 50 or above
50LA =

The overall turnover rate was 36.50% in 2022, and
breakdown of turnover by gender, geographical region,
and age group is provided in the table below.
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By region
RiLE
6.94%

a%%"l

86.61%

s Located in Hong Kong
UNEE

= Located in Macao
L R

= Located in China
LA Bl A
By employment type

RERER
0.33%

99.67%
= Full-time u Parlt-time
28 TR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(Continued)

Breakdown of turnover rate

Employee turnover

RE  #HERERRE

BRERZIER &)

ABRKLL R\

Turnover rate

in 2022 in 2022 (%)
—E-= —E-=

Turnover by category REREDHAERKER EERKE ABMRKEE (%)
By gender E7 Q|

Male B 143 41.57%

Female feg i3 116 31.74%
By geographical region i 1B E i

Hong Kong E,% 158 27.87%

Macao 5 5 4 10.67%

PRC l:F'I7§Ii1ﬂ 97 92.38%
By age group BRERE

Below 30 30T 87 47.67%

30-50 30-50 152 33.59%

Above 50 50 Ak 20 26.85%

Regulatory compliance

During the reporting period, the Group adhered to the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong and other relevant
regulations in applicable jurisdictions. The Group was
not aware of any material non-compliance that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to preventing
child or forced labour.

Employee health and safety

The health and safety of our employees are of great
importance to the Group, hence we are committed
to provide a safe working environment to protect
employees from occupational hazards. We strictly
comply with relevant laws and regulations, including
the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and
the Fire Safety (Commercial Premises) Ordinance of
Hong Kong. While our employees are not typically
exposed to high-risk activities, regular safety inspection
is conducted to ensure compliance with relevant
regulations and safety of our office environment. Fire
drill is conducted annually to raise the safety awareness
of our employees and minimise the risks in case of
emergency at offices.

Furthermore, the Group has supported people’s
wellbeing and health to create a positive environment,
by providing medical insurance coverage, covering
services like clinical visits, hospitalisation benefits,
dental benefits, specialist visits, and health check-ups.
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RE  #HERERBS

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(Continued)

Employee health and safety (Continued)

During the reporting period, we adhered to relevant laws
and regulations and were not aware of any incidence of
material non-compliance relating to health and safety.

Occupational Health and Safety Statistics in 2022
Work-related fatality from FY2020 to FY2022: 0
Work-related injuries: 0

Lost days due to work-related injuries: 0O
Development and training

The Group continues to invest in our employees at
all stages of their careers to promote their long-term
professional and personal development. We provided
a series of training programmes for all employees in
terms of their job levels. New hires are briefed on our
high standard of core value and their responsibilities as
well as legal compliance, company product knowledge,
sales techniques and subsequently introduced to their
mentors. For management staff, we offered trainings on
leadership to boost their skills in discharging managerial
responsibilities.

In 2022, the overall trainings for the Group were as
follow:
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICE
(Continued)

Development and training (Continued)

To ensure that our agents comply with the regulatory
requirements, we offered regular legal compliance
e-refreshers on various topics, including anti-money
laundering, direct marketing, and data privacy. Agents
are required to complete the compliance trainings,
or else their agency contract may be terminated. We
have also established an “Internal Compliance Guide
for Sales to PRC Clients” outlining the compliance
requirements for agents working on insurance sales to
mainland clients.

Apart from the abovementioned trainings, we encourage
our employees at YF Life to join the Designation
Programs offered by the Life Office Management
Association (LOMA), which offers programs related
to customer services, reinsurance and compliance,
allowing our staff to learn various facets of the insurance
industry and equip our staff with the vital skills to stay
relevant in the changing world. Furthermore, through
providing course fee reimbursement and offering
examination leaves, we encourage our employees to
participate in self-improvement courses which are
beneficial to their career development, enhancing their
professional knowledge and skillsets.

Our culture actively supports the continuous
development of our employees by offering a series
of internal and external training opportunities in
non-insurance business and compliance, encompassing
a large variety of topics, team-building sessions,
FATCA'" and CRS? updates, SFC® seminars with
regulatory updates, financial reporting updates,
anti-money laundering and counter financing of
terrorism, cybersecurity, and data breach, and refresher
training on compliance matters for our staff.

To ensure our employees stay abreast of the latest
developments in the industry, we regularly review
the contents of our training materials to enhance the
Group’s business development and successive planning
needs.

! Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act
2 Common Reporting Standard
8 Securities and Futures Commission
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RE  #HERERBS

OPERATION PRACTICES
Product responsibility

We aim to achieve service excellence by providing our
customers with quality insurance products and other
financial services. Both industries are highly regulated
by the governing bodies and regulators such as the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission, Hong
Kong Insurance Authority, Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority, and Monetary
Authority of Macao. We strictly abide by relevant laws
and regulations including sales practice, KYC check,
credit control, compliance, risk disclosure, information
protection and data security, and trademarks and
intellectual property. All employees are required to
undergo compliance refresher trainings regularly to
ensure they are capable of providing quality services to
our customers.

During the reporting period, there was no incident of
material non-compliance against the relevant laws and
regulations relating to our products and services.

Providing quality insurance product and services

Our insurance products are developed to provide
financial security and support customers to manage
the unexpected and their lifelong planning. We strive
to provide high quality products to our customers and
abide to all relevant laws and regulations. To remain
abreast of the evolving market, we collaborate with
different institutions from time to time to conduct market
research and ensure our products suit our customers’
needs.

Agents being our bridge to the customers, they are all
properly licensed according to the rules promulgated by
the Hong Kong Insurance Authority and the Monetary
Authority of Macao and have satisfied all legal and
internal standards of YF Life before being permitted to
distribute YF Life insurance products. Besides strictly
following the Hong Kong Insurance Authority’s Code of
Conduct for Licensed Insurance Agents and the industry
best practices, our agents are also required to conduct
business in accordance with our “Agent Handbook”. We
regularly communicate and educate our agents of our
insurance products to guarantee the delivery of quality
services and allow proper and accurate representations
of product features to customers.
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OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)

Providing quality insurance product and services
(Continued)

We also have an “Internal Compliance Guide for Sales
to PRC Clients” in place to provide guidance to our
staff and agents the “Dos and Don’ts” when dealing
with PRC clients. The policy covers daily practices, from
sales and mentoring to internal training and qualification
requirements. Agents are required to follow the internal
qualification requirements with no exceptions.

The monitoring of our service quality also extends to
the post-sales periods. We follow industry practices
as issued by the Hong Kong Insurance Authority, such
as making audio-recorded calls to reaffirm client’s
understanding of the insurance policy purchased,
including both investment-linked and life insurance
products. In addition, we make use of third-party
Mystery Shopper Programmes on an irregular basis to
review and assess the selling practice of our agents.

Providing quality financial products and services

For our investment products, we have an investment
committee chaired by the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group, which oversees all investment decisions and
the new financial products/services launching process.
An internal approval process is used to govern the new
product launching process and mitigate relevant risks
of new products. Launching new products requires
approvals from all relevant middle and back-office
functions to ensure that relevant market practices and
regulations are met.

We are dedicated to communicating updated and
complete information to our customers making informed
decisions in relation to their wealth and investment
opportunities. We ensure that our communication
materials displayed in a clear, concise and transparent
manner to ensure that individuals understand the terms
and conditions and can make informed decisions based
on accurate and reliable information. In addition, clients
could raise their concerns in our chatbot which provides
automatic replies to frequently asked questions, and
if they are not satisfied with the answers, they will be
directed to our customer service representatives.
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RE  #HERERBS

OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Customer privacy and feedback
Information security and business continuity

The Group is committed to safeguarding client
confidentially. We strive to minimise the risks from our
operations to provide customers with quality products
and services. Our group-wide Cybersecurity Policy
and Information Security Policy of YF Life outline our
rationale to collect, process and maintain data in the
principles of confidentiality, integrity and availability.

We strictly comply with the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance in Hong Kong. Any violation of data privacy
obligations is subject to disciplinary actions. Access
permissions are kept to the minimum necessary to
protect our clients’ data and information leakage from
unauthorised or accidental access, and erasure. In
addition, our Corporate Compliance Guide also outlines
the fundamental principles in handling customers’
data. When providing service to clients, we ensure
that personal data will only be collected for necessary
purposed by lawful and fair means. Employees failed to
observe customer confidentiality are subject to internal
disciplinary action.

As the growth of cyber threats accelerates, the Group
continues to enhance our cybersecurity protection
guided by our Cybersecurity Policy. We ensure that
employees abide our policies by offering cybersecurity
trainings and updates on the latest cybersecurity risks.

The stability of our systems enables us to deliver
high-quality services. To protect information from
enormous threats and minimise business risks, the
Group has formulated comprehensive and systematic
infrastructure security management strategies for
preparing and responding to the emergency. We
developed our infrastructure with regular back-up
features at managed data centres. In case of server
breakdown, we can switch to the back-up server within
a short period to ensure minimal disruption to our
services.
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OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Customer privacy and feedback (Continued)
Customer Feedback

We aim to achieve service excellence by thoroughly
understanding the needs of customers and surpassing
their expectations. We provided various channels and
platforms, including customer service hotline and email,
to collect customer feedback and suggestions timely.
Our customer service representatives are trained to
address complaints from our customers professionally,
pragmatically, and swiftly. In addition, we also regularly
seek inputs from our front-line business units to
identify room for improvement and formulate corrective
measures where practicable.

Intellectual property protection

We respect intellectual property rights and endeavour
to protect the Group from reputational damages.
The Group follows the legitimate intellectual property
application procedures for its new trademark, labels,
and product designs in all operations. In addition, all
software used in our daily operations are with a legal
license.

During the reporting period, we were not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations
regarding product responsibility.

Anti-corruption

The Group has zero tolerance on any forms of bribery,
extortion, fraud or money laundering in our operation.
Our Corporate Compliance Guide outlines the
expectations of ethical behaviour for all employees to
achieve and maintain the highest standards of integrity.
Business practice and controls for preventing and
combating corruption are assessed at both Group-level
and business unit-level. For example, all new joiners
are provided with internal guidelines regarding their
professional obligations upon joining the Group.
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RE  #HERERBS

OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Anti-corruption (Continued)

The Group complies in full of applicable laws and
regulations related to anti-money laundering (“AML”)
and Counter-Financing of Terrorism (“CFT”) to prevent
the use of its products and services for money
laundering and terrorist financing purposes. For
our insurance business, a policy is established with
reference to the Hong Kong Insurance Authority’s
Guideline on Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terrorist Financing. Under the policy, a clear and
comprehensive mechanism has been implemented to
report on money laundering related matters. From time
to time, updates are made to the policy to incorporate
the latest legal requirements that all employees should
follow. Any report made with sufficient supporting
evidence will be promptly investigated and appropriate
actions will be taken to handle the situation.

For our other financial services regulated by the Hong
Kong SFC, regulated entities under the Company are
governed by our AML/Know-your-client (“KYC”) policy
and is based on the following fundamental principles:

° Exercising due diligence when dealing with
customers, natural persons appointed to act on
the customer’s behalf, connected parties of the
customer and beneficial owner of the customer.

° Conducting business in conformity with the
Group’s ethical standards and guarding against
establishing any business relations or undertaking
any transaction, that is or maybe connected with
or may facilitate money laundering or terrorism
financing.

° Assisting and cooperating with the relevant
law enforcement authorities to prevent money
laundering and terrorism financing.

° Providing annual training to ensure all relevant
employees are aware of their personal
responsibilities and the procedures to be adhered
to.

The Group has established a Whistleblowing Policy and
a Speak-up Policy for employees. Employees can report
any suspected non-compliance or misconduct without
disclosing their identity to ensure the whistle blowers
can uphold the Group’s ethical standards without
concerns of being retaliated.
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OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)
Anti-corruption (Continued)

We take initiatives to enhance employees’ awareness
and understanding of business ethics. The Group
has organised the corruption and bribery prevention
trainings during the reporting period. For example,
employees of the Company receive annual refresher
training and updates on important compliance
guidelines, and at YF Life the Independent Commission
Against Corruption is invited to provide annual workshop
to strengthen employees’ awareness towards possible
misconduct. To enhance corporate management, we
standardise our expenditures through the Regulations
on Financial Expenditure Management by clearly
documenting the various approval requirements of
different expenditures by their nature and amount.

During the reporting period, there was no reported
non-compliance relating to corruption or money
laundering.

Supply chain and counterparties management

At YF Life, we are committed to upholding high standard
of quality and social responsibility in our dealing with
suppliers. The Group work with a range of suppliers
to support our operations, including information
technology. Through taking prudent approach, we
assess and select our suppliers based on capability,
pricing, certifications, availability of local support, and
possible synergy from leveraging other services.

For our other financial services, effective counterparty
and transaction due diligence processes are vital to our
business operation as to form long-term partnerships
with our valued business partners. We promote an
ownership system where service/business users
within the Company are responsible for selecting the
counterparties and entering into transactions. The users
are responsible for gathering sufficient information and
using an appropriate mechanism to address different
business, financial, legal, and compliance-related
concerns raised by relevant internal functions. Once
all concerns are addressed and cleared by the relevant
internal functions governed by the internal new business
approval process, the proposed transactions are
then recommended to senior management for final
approval and execution. Significant concerns and issues
identified will be escalated to the senior management
and Risk Oversight Committee for thorough review and
discussion to determine the next course of action to be
taken.
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RE  #HERERBS

OPERATION PRACTICES (Continued)

Supply chain and counterparties management
(Continued)

As part of the implementation of the counterparty
management policy, our risk management, finance, legal
and compliance teams review the transaction terms
and related documents and determine the need for,
and depth of, additional due diligence of counterparties
including counterparty risk and the corresponding extent
of on-boarding procedures required. We have outlined
the activities and types of counterparties that the
Company does not associate with, such as those where
there is evidence of forced or child labour and certain
transactions involving market misconduct, mis-selling,
or those with negative publicity. For service quality
maintenance purposes, we continue monitoring all
existing counterparties’ market reputation and business
practice.

The Group has developed a comprehensive set of
tendering and quotation procedures to engage the most
suitable service providers with tailored selection criteria
in areas such as product/service quality and internal
control and risk management of various operational
risks including credit, reputational and concentration
risks.

The Group has extended responsibilities and standards
in relation of environmental protection and social
compliance to our suppliers, which we prioritise working
with environmentally and socially responsible suppliers.
The Group expects fair and equal employment practices
from our suppliers and has zero tolerance for unethical
treatment, illegal labour practices, and any form of
discrimination. Regular performance monitoring and
evaluation are carried out to assess and evaluate the
performance of our suppliers and identify risks that may
impact the Group.

Project management and quality control team are
established to maximise automation and segregation
of duties for the internally developed service provision
processes. These teams liaise with different areas
of operations, including the development of different
product initiatives, financial infrastructure, and
applications, by developing a procedural manual and
conducting regular progress meetings. The teams
ensure quality services and products as per the
standard set by senior management.

During the reporting period, the Group engage with 89
suppliers of which 87% are based in Hong Kong.
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ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY
Environment
Use of resources

We operate in a way that respects nature as we
recognise that every decision we make, and choices
enacted, can influence the future of the planet. We are
committed to minimising environmental impacts from
our operations to respond to climate-related risks by
adopting energy-saving practices and technologies.

Among the Main Subsidiary’s equipment use within the
office environment, the network units consume the most
energy. The 24x7 cooling system with open-rack design
helps to control the energy efficiency at office’s network
room. In the rented data centers, there is a 24x7
cooling technology system with airflow optimization and
open-rack design for reducing energy consumption.

To embrace a green office culture, we adhere to
principles of reduce, recycle and reuse to maintain
resource efficiency in our daily operations and further
minimise our already low impact on our planet. We
adopted various green practices to improve energy
efficiency, reduce water consumption and manage
paper usage as follows:

- Switching off idle lightings, air conditioning
and electrical appliances to reduce energy
consumption;

- Encouraging double-sided printing and using
recycled paper for printing and copying;

- Encouraging use of recycled envelopes for internal
courier service;

- Encouraging staff to prioritise the use of email and
electronic communications; and

—  Setting up recycling bins in office areas

YF Life has joined Energy Efficiency of Lighting
Installations under Buildings Energy Efficiency
Ordinance that requires professional engineers to
calculate the energy consumption and guide the E&M
contractors in following the regulatory requirements.
During new office renovations, it prefers LED lights over
fluorescent lights to reduce electricity consumption.
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ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY (Continued)
Environment (Continued)
Use of resources (Continued)

Transitioning to a paperless operation has been an
ongoing priority for the Group, to not only reduce our
reliance on traditional paperwork, but also enables
us to pursue opportunities in efficiency and flexibility.
YF Life has also been progressively digitalising its
business operations. FinTech mobile applications
including online application, electronic policy issue,
online payment, ePolicy Services and claims have been
further enhanced. In the coming years, it will continue
enhance those applications to enrich the functionalities
and improve customer experiences as well as reducing
our environmental impact while improving efficiency in
operations.

Details of electricity, water and paper consumption at
our offices are summarised in the table below.

Summary of resources consumptions

ZEHER (&)

AERCEEEN -—BERAEENEEREH
B T TR D R (P S T AR
BULEEMSRUAENE ,E S HABE -
ERRREBSEEERLEHTL -ER
HiE - HAEFRE - #RX M -~ ePolicy (B
FRE)R® ERSSRNMRBHEARR
#— f%éﬂfiﬂiﬂéxﬁﬁ B D RE—
SWBAELERERARF SEHWENRER
FER THERESEENRNEKRD KM
HRENTE -

BAPEENE KN BERFRETR

BERHFER

Use of resources Unit 2021 2022
FEREIR B —E-F —ZF-=
Electricity kWh 3,805,874 2,546,489
z FRE

Water® m? 613°¢ 640

S RS

Paper (A3) Sheets 110,731 77,8417

4% (A3) [

Paper (A4) Sheets 8,562,908 7,827,625

4% (A4) [

4 The Company’s Beijing office and one YF Life Hong Kong 4 RANEFERAER —EAEBREEERLER
office were closed in 2022, causing the drop in electricity —EC_FERN BHASEETHR -
consumption.

5 Since the water consumption of some offices was 5 ARSI MAEZENAKEARENEEEESTE
managed by the buildings’ property management, we B RAELIESERNAKERE - BtERE
cannot obtain the actual water consumption data. Hence WRAKEBHRTZENRQLE  HHBEQATANE
the reported water consumption excluded these offices, ,%?}#/D\r“ +EABEBERBEBPRAZTUR=EZ
which include the Company’s Hong Kong office, ten YF BREBEFAPAE o
Life Hong Kong offices and three YF Life Macao offices.

6 The water consumption in 2021 is amended to align with 6 —E-FWAKEEETHEE  LE-ZT==
the scope in 2022. FHREHERT 3 -

7 Paper consumption reduction in 2022 reflects our efforts 7 TECCENERERERO R T R ELL

in the transition to a paperless operation.
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ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY (Continued)
Emissions

Due to the nature of our business operations, we do not
produce significant direct environmental emissions such
as air emission, discharges to water and land, and the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes,
and do not consider such emissions to be material.
However, we are aware of the carbon emissions from
our electricity consumption and strive to minimise
energy consumption in our offices, servers, and data
centres.

YF Life is also taking measures in the renovation work
of new office to reduce air emissions. For example, its
contractor uses eco-friendly materials such as Zero
Formaldehyde Emission (EO standard) composite boards
and Ecological (ECO) glues for all the wallpapers and
carpets.

During the reporting period, there was no material
non-compliance regarding environmental emissions
reported.

The environmental and natural resources

The Group has been committed to protect the
environment by incorporate ESG considerations into
business. At YF Life, Barings LLC is appointed to be the
investment manager of fixed-income assets portfolio,
who is a signatory of the United Nation’s Principle of
Responsible Investment and has incorporated ESG
factors into its rigorous investment analysis process.
Such integration of ESG factors into the investment
process provides better insights into long-term risks and
opportunities and enhances the stability of our portfolio.

We seek to work with top-tier fund managers for our
wealth management services, which have incorporated
fundamental ESG considerations into their investment
decisions. We select mutual fund partners by focusing
on new industries and avoid investment in industries
with negative ESG impacts. As part of our due diligence
procedures, we also conduct news screening on funds
to better understand their ESG performance. Any
adverse media identified, including ESG-related ones,
may trigger further investigation or clarification with the
fund managers, depending on the nature of the issue.

The Group recognises the importance of integrating
ESG factors into the decision-making of our investment
strategies and financial services. While we have not
formulated specific policies or guidelines, we are
considering incorporating ESG factors in our investment
strategies and financial services.

EHOREBERAT
—B-—EEH

RE  #HERERRE

RREHE &)
B

HRAEMNERESHE  RPATFELEK
EEENRBHER (NERBER > mKkEBML
HWOFSURBERBEEBERYNESL) -
BERMABLEFRIFTER - ERMEE
ETREEENEEERNERBER - O RE&
KPR B 1R D 3 A B DA AR5 28 A BUE O
HYBETRUH #E o

ERRBEEFRLAEZNEE IR P EIUN
VPERERER -FWN ERAEEHFEHEBR
MBS M EEANMBORBESRBER
(EOIZ#) EE MM AV ERE(ECO)B K o

RBEHRN  RBEERAREHFRNEKRE
BER

BERRARER

AEEB-EHEBINREBEERE HERER
ZEREZMARMPNERZ EHERRER
B B E®RK - EZ&FBarings LLCEEFR
FMEERZEEREHEANBRELE - BM
RITEABAENSEXERERANIEE
BRE HERERREZMATERENKRE
PHAR BEBBERE HERERREZM
ARERE RMERBEKRK KBS HEE
REFAFINERE RAREHAENERE
MEHEATEE -

HREMNOMEEERS  RMSREER
ESEBAGE ELESEBEAEKER
MRE HERELGEEREMARERE
HoEREHAFESSEBHE  HMNXE
EXHTE UBRERENBERE S
REAXENTE - FRARMEBBAERRF
-0 RMESHESETHEGE
DESEF THRERE HEBRERER -
FBERNEMNEENE SERRE 4
REGHBHNHE HUEKSc|IBHESE
BAETE-TRAELREF BRBORRE
BEME -

AEBERZHIKRE HEREARZMA
HEMOREEXBANSHBBREPINEE
e HREMERFERBEKNIEE B
EMEEZRHMRE HERELREERE
MARPINRERBEMEBART o
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ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY (Continued)
Climate change

Climate change is undoubtedly one of the greatest
challenges faced by the world today. We must be
prepared to manage such risks to minimise impacts to
our business.

Physical risks of climate change brought by extreme
events can be far-reaching and affect the quality of
life for our communities, which will lead to significant
disruptions to our businesses in the long term, adversely
impacting economic output, and damaging asset and
properties. Moreover, transition risks pose a significant
near-team threat to our operation. From the transition
to a low-carbon economy, assets of carbon-intensive
companies may deteriorate, affecting the portfolio’s
returns. Extreme weather changes the market needs on
insurance products and services, creating a strategic
risk to overall business viability.

Community Investment

We leverage our influence and resources to build
greater resilience and more sustainable livelihoods. The
Group works closely with the charitable organisation
that align with our visions through active engagement
and investing in meaningful initiatives to the maximum
practicable extent to charitable organisations.

YF Life Jr. Space Camp Program

The “YF Life Jr. Space Camp Program” was a first
of its kind programme started by YF Life Insurance
International Ltd. in 1999 to provide simulated astronaut
training for children from Hong Kong and Macao.
Since its inception, this program has helped over 150
children make their space dreams come true. With its
all-round, innovative, and unique training methodology,
the program is designed to spark and nurture children’s
interest in space exploration and advanced aerospace
technology and strengthen the parent-child bond
through a series of parent-child collaboration activities.
The program’s slogan, “It is Possible!” encourages
children to disregard the difficulties, and to reach out
their dreams with courage and perseverance.

With the spread of COVID-19 and in the interests of all
participants’ health and safety, the YF Life Jr. Space
Camp Program was suspended for three years. We will
resume the program in the coming year due to easing of
pandemic control measures.
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ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY (Continued)
Community Investment (Continued)
Own the Future with COVID-19 protections

The pandemic has inundated us with numerous
challenges to our daily lives and the Group continued
to offer multiple protections for our customers and
HK$1.2 million benefit payment was made, including
Hospital Income Benefit, Pre-hospitalization Outpatient
Benefit, COVID Test Protection, Protection for Adverse
Effects following Immunization and Death Benefits.
With tightening of social distancing measures, people
have inevitably tended to grow further apart and
therefore we have launched a campaign, “Lessons
Learnt From the Epidemic” that illustrates a series
of heart-warming stories from our consultants and
customers, to encourage everyone to stay optimistic
and radiate positive energy to people around us. In line
with the launch of the campaign, we have given away
4,000 packs of anti-epidemic gift sets. We have also
donated Rapid Antigen Test (RAT) kits and face masks
to various community organisations, our staff and front
line consultants to help prevent the spread of the virus
in the community.

Participation and sponsorships in social and
environmental events

We also actively participate in charitable events
organised by non-governmental organisations (“NGOs”).
In 2022, we continued to participate in and make
monetary donations to the Virtual Walk for Millions,
Skip Lunch Day, Dress Casual Day, and Love Teeth Day
organised by The Community Chest of Hong Kong. In
addition, we have also participated in the World Sight
Day 2022 and Action for Sight 2022 organised by Orbis
in Hong Kong and Macao, respectively.

To raise public awareness on climate change, we
participated in the Lai See Reuse and Recycling
Program organised by Greeners Actions and the Earth
Hour 2022 organised by the World Wide Fund for
Nature. Employees were encouraged to participate in
these community events and make donations to show
their support.

EHOREBERAT
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ENVIRONMENT & COMMUNITY (Continued)
Community Investment (Continued)

Participation and sponsorships in social and
environmental events (Continued)

Moreover, we participated in Blood Transfusion Day
2022 co-organised by Lions Clubs International District
303 and Hong Kong Red Cross, and “LUAHK Charity
Sales” organised by the Life Underwriters Association
of Hong Kong (“LUAHK?”), to inspire and empower our
employees to actively respond to the needs of the
communities surrounding us.

The Group has enhanced the overall cultural literacy of
our society and the public by sponsoring and promoting
the development of local art groups in Hong Kong,
creating widespread interest among the general public
for the refinement and elegance of arts. YF Life has
been the major founding patrons of Hong Kong Arts
Festival Foundation with a donation amount of HK$3
million, which supports the development of art projects
and create a transformative impact in the long run.
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APPENDIX: HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE

INDEX
Aspects
gk

A Environmental
RiE

A1 Emissions
BErk 4

General Disclosure

— R =

(@) Policies and
(b) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BREERNRERBEHN - kRIS - BF
REZBREVYNELESN

(@ BX R
(b) BFUBRTABEASENHEEERRM

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emission data

RN EEREEHERER

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

HEE(SE1)ReEFREE(GE2) REREBHRE (K
WHE)R(NMBER)ZE(WMUSESEN - B1ER
W) o

EHOREBERAT
—B-—EEH

Remarks

B

Section
=32

Environment
Bis

- Due to our business
nature, no significant
amount of air emission
was generated.

HAREMNERLEE K7
EEEAREENEEER

) e

- Greenhouse gas
emissions are not
identified as material
to the Group. We will
continue to observe any
regulatory changes to
review our disclosure in

the future.

B E RS PFROR KRR B
FEEBEE - ZMKF
BEREEE  BKE
BARRABRIIKEE -
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112

Aspects
gilE

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

FEEEEREWAE (LIMTE) R (MER) &
LSESEM §RRETHE) °

B (0

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility)

FELEEEEYRS (UMTHE) & (18
LEBESEN  BEREAEHE) -

) ZE (1

Description of emission target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them

B PRET LB E B B R BERE L BRI
BB o

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them

HEEEEREZEEVNG L RIEAFAEI LN
HEEERAEDELHEMRINDSER

N

Mis: EEXS
51) &Rl (#)

HwEE

Section

B

Environment
Big

Fi(RE - HERER

Remarks

B

Due to our business
nature, no significant
amount of hazardous
waste was generated.

AREBEPMHEBMEE - K
EELEEREENESE
BEZEY) -

Non-hazardous wastes
are not identified as
material to the Group
and no data was
tracked. fE E BEE Y K
BAAHAEEBEE
(It ok BR M AH B B9 o

Emissions and wastes are
not considered to be
the most material issues
comparatively given
the Group’ s business
nature. While we put
effort to reduce our
negative environmental
impact, currently
specific targets with
respect to these
aspects are not defined.
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A2

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

Aspects
gilE

Use of Resources

EIRE A

General Disclosure

—RE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water, and other raw materials.

ﬁgﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ(@ﬁﬁm KR E AR BB

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type

(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s)

and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility)

RENESNEER LEEER(WE - [ 2
HEUTETRKFAE)REZE(MUSESEN -
BIERETEHE)

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

BEKBRZE(NMUSESBSEN - BEREHE)

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them

MAET LB REARZEERAHERNBLBERR
BHITER o

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them

U SREGE AKR E AT B RERE - LURFTET A
KB ERRBEZNELBFEARRNLE -

Total packaging material used for finished products
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to
per unit produced.

S mrASRMBNES (UMEAE)
BEEEULE

K (qniE )

EHEBEBARAT
SSii

RIE-#HERER

HE

Mtk - BERXZAC(RE HERESR
wEE |>>%€I(5§)

Section Remarks

=41 sk

Environment
BiE

Environment
BRi5

Environment
B

Environment
B

Environment
B

Environment
BiE

The Group is reviewing
its operations and
environmental
performance in
considering target
setting on energy and
water consumption.

AEBEMNHEEBEER
RIBERBLUEZES }T:ﬁb/ﬁ
RAKEBERE

Due to our business
nature, no significant
amount of packaging
material was used.
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Aspects
gilE

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

BREERXRER

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on minimizing the issuer’ s significant
impact on the environment and natural

resources.
FEREBRTAHRERRAERENEARTENHK
x o

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and
the action taken to manage them.

WLEBEZHHRERRREFNEALERE KRN

EEARIENTE -

A4 Climate Change
RIRE

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the

issuer.
AR EHE R JESHBTAELEFENERR
REBEEMNBER -

A4 A Description of the significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which

may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to

manage them.
B R IREHRTAELEXLENERRIZEEHR
EH KEHTH -
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Environment
B

Environment
BiE

Environment
BIE

Environment
B

The Group’ s businesses
are mainly conducted in
offices and hence there
is insignificant impact
on the environment and
natural resources.
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Aspects
gilE

B Social
e

B1 Employment
EE

General Disclosure

— IR E

(@) Policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
BN AR BEREA - THEEE - RB - F

ZHeE Sl REVRUREMGBREFN

(@ BXE R

(o) BIFEHBITABEAZENEBEERERM -
B EERE(MEHIRE) - FRANRTE

EoMESHRH -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for

example, full- or part-time), age group and
geographical region.

BUER - EREELE  FRENRBEZ S NESHH -

EHOREBERAT
—B-—EEH

RE  #HERERRE
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HEESD RS @)

Section Remarks
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B2

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3
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Aspects
gilE

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

=R - FRAENRBEE S WEERALE

Health and Safety

RERZZ

General Disclosure

—RIKE

(@) Policies; and
(b) Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.

BRRHZEZIFERERRERERABEMEREN

(@ HX: K

(o) BFHBITABEARENHEEEEREAEM -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred
in each of the past three years including the
reporting year.

BE=F (BRERFE)BEFRITHRHABRLR -

Lost days due to work injury.

AITEBERTHFRHE -

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

PR ERAN IR 2 R B 2 2 6
BERRFE ©

AR ARRE AT R
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wEE |>>%€I(5§)

Section Remarks
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Employment
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Employee health
and safety
EEfRERHE
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Employee health
and safety
EERRHEZS

Employee health
and safety

BERREZE

Employee health
and safety
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Aspects
gilE

RIE-#HERER

HE

Mtk - BERXZAC(RE HERESR
wEE |>>%€I(5§)

Section Remarks

=41 sk

B3 Development and Training

EEEb

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description
of training activities.

FERAEERTIEBENNERERENEER - f#
AIZFNEE ©

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender

and employee category (e.g. senior management,

middle management).
BUBIRESER(NEREERE - PREEE)E S
MEIMEET DL ©
B3.2  The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
&Q%REEE%%“ BEEETRFZ N T

B4 Labour Standards
T A A

General Disclosure

—RIKE

(@) Policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BEBLEETSEBILE TH

(@ BE R

(b) BIFHBITABEALENMEEERRAM -

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
fa T B BN R AR E T RABFET -
B4.2  Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.
MM ERRERBEREEREBEBRAARRNTER -
EERESHEBERAT
TR FFR

Development
and training

B R a3

Development
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Aspects
gilE

Supply Chain Management
fitpE s g

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.
FHEBHEENRERTESRAMBER

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BiES D WHEBHE -

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

H AR AHERNIES - aEBITHEBIEG YA
FERHE » UREBEHITRERLE

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

M EREE R MRS ERBNRRER LSRRG
Bl DR AEBERITRERGE -

Description of practices used to promote

environmentally preferable products and services

when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
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Aspects
gk
B6 Product Responsibility
EmEE
General Disclosure
— R E
(@) Policies; and
(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
BEMREHEERNBRENRRREZE - BE - BEK
AIRBEEURBR G EN
(@ HX: K
(b) BIFHBTABEAZEWAEBEERSRL -
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
CENCEZXERAHPRZ 2 EEREERMAR K
WEDL -
B6.2  Number of products and service-related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.
EEBENEMRRBENIRFEHE UREH T E -
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.
R B4 AR AR E B RIS -
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
HiEEREBEREMBWRERF
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented and
monitored.
HIUHEEERRERALBEER - UREERITRE
%{\E/i °
EERESHEBERAT
TEITFFR

RE  #HERERRE

Misk - BEEXZM(RIR  -HLERER
HmEES|I) RSl (&)
Section Remarks
=4:0] (oEs
Product
responsibility
EmEE
- Not applicable to the
Group’s businesses.
HAEENXBTER
- The Group is currently
assessing the feasibility
of collecting and
disclosing such
information.
AEERIEMEWERIKE
ZEERMTTIE -
Intellectual
property
protection
i E R

- Not applicable to the
Group’s businesses.

HARENEBIEA -

Customer privacy
and feedback
BEFALEBR
k&8
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B7

B7.1

B7.2

B7.3
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Aspects
s

Anti-corruption
RES
General Disclosure

—RIKE

(@) Policies; and
(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud, and money

laundering.
BRI - BR - BRFRITEERN
(@ BE K

(b) BFHBITABEAZENHEBEEERRA -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

RERPAHBTAREESERHICELNE
MRV E RFAER

i

Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, how they are implemented
and monitored.

A fr g RERER - URMEEHTRERLE

Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.

HmESRETRENREISTEI -

Mtk - BERXZAC(RE HERESR
wEESlI) RSl (&)
Section Remarks
=41 fas

Anti-corruption
RES

Anti-corruption
R&E5

Anti-corruption
RES

Anti-corruption
RES
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Aspects Section Remarks
Eil =4: 0] Bt
B8 Community Investment
HERE
General Disclosure Community
—RiFE Investment
HERE

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

BRUMEBZHERTBRITALEMELEFTEME
REXBTHESEERLEFENBEX

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, Community
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, Investment
culture, sport). HERE

EIERER (%A  RESH HFIFR - #FE-
34| AN
BE) -

B8.2  Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the Community

focus area. Investment
EEIHEFBAER(MSERNEFRE) o HERE
EERESHEBERAT

SLE 121



Independent Auditor’s Report
BB A RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 134
to 349, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE

MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Valuation of insurance contract provisions

Refer to note 31 to the consolidated financial statements

and the accounting policies at note 2(h).

The Key Audit Matter

The Group has significant
insurance contract provisions
comprised of policyholders’
deposits, future policyholders’
benefits and unearned revenue
liability amounted to HK$72,042
million representing 82 per cent of
the Group’s total liabilities.

The computation of future
policyholders’ benefits involves
the use of a reserving model
and significant judgement over
uncertain future outcomes,
primarily the ultimate total
settlement value of future
policyholders’ benefits. The
estimation of these future
policyholders’ benefits includes
the determination of economic
assumptions, including investment
yields and associated discount
rates, and operating assumptions
including mortality, morbidity,
expenses and lapses.

We identified valuation of
insurance contract provisions as
a key audit matter because of
its significance to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements
and the significant degree of
management judgement involved.

ERSRMEESRAT
—T_EER

How the matter was addressed in

our audit

Our audit procedures to assess
the valuation of insurance contract
provisions with the involvement of
our internal actuarial specialists
included the following:

* assessing the Group’s
methodology for calculating the
insurance contract provisions
and the movements in
insurance contract provisions
during the year, including
consideration of whether the
movements are in line with the
assumptions adopted by the
Group, our understanding of
developments in the business
and expectation derived from
market experience;

o assessing the reasonableness
of the key assumptions
adopted over the calculation of
insurance contract provisions
based on the relevant
experience studies and future
expectation;
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BB A RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Valuation of insurance contract provisions
(Continued)

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in
our audit

o testing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key controls
over the insurance contract
provisions valuation process,
including the accuracy and
completeness of policy data
input into the actuarial models,
assessment and approval of
the methods and assumptions
adopted over the calculation of
insurance contract provisions
as well as appropriate access
and change management
controls over the actuarial
models;

* sample testing the future
policyholders’ benefits
calculation of material product
groups;

* assessing the methodology
and assumptions used by the
management in the Liability
Adequacy Test (“LAT")
calculation; and

* assessing whether the
disclosures in relation to
the assumptions used in the
valuation of insurance contract
provisions are compliant
with the relevant accounting
standard requirements and
appropriately represent the
sensitivities of the liabilities
to alternative scenarios and
inputs.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE

MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Valuation of investments measured at fair value

Refer to note 25 and 5(a)(ii)(6) to the consolidated
financial statements and the accounting policies at note

2(j)-

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2022, the fair
value of the Group’s investments
carried at fair value totalled
HK$32,740 million, of which
HK$7,223 million was classified as
level 3 investments under the fair
value hierarchy.

The valuation of level 3
investments within the investment
portfolio involves significant
judgement due to the lack of
readily available pricing sources
and the expert judgement involved
in determining the appropriate
valuation methodology and
assumptions to be used.

We identified the valuation of
investments measured at fair value
as a key audit matter because of
the degree of complexity involved
in valuing level 3 investments and
the significant degree of judgement
exercised by management.

ERSRMEESRAT
—T_EER

How the matter was addressed in

our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
fair value of level 3 investments
with the involvement of our internal
valuation specialists included the
following:

o assessing the design and
implementation of key controls
over the valuation of level 3
investments;

o assessing the appropriateness
of the valuation methodologies;

o assessing the reasonableness
of a sample of the valuation
assumptions;

o evaluating the management’s
valuation assessment and
resulting conclusions to
determine the appropriateness
of the valuations recorded:;

o assessing the appropriateness
of the use of the net asset
value reports provided by
external fund administrators or
the quoted price provided by
external calculation agent when
these are the pricing source
of the level 3 investments at
reporting date; and

e assessing whether the
disclosures in relation to
the level 3 investments are
compliant with the relevant
accounting requirements and
appropriately present the
sensitivities in the valuations
based on alternative outcomes.
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B ZBETRE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Recoverability and amortisation of Value of Business

Acquired

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies at note 2(h(v)).

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2022, the
Group has reported Value of
Business Acquired (“VOBA”)
of HK$10,418 million and
amortisation of the VOBA of
HK$114 million for the year.
The recoverability assessment
and amortisation of the VOBA
are based on the achieved and
projected future premium and
profit profile, which involves
management making assumptions
about future outcomes.

We identified the recoverability
and amortisation of VOBA as
a key audit matter because of
its significance to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements
and the significant degree of
management judgement.
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How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Our audit procedures to assess
the recoverability and amortisation
of VOBA with the involvement of
our internal actuarial specialists
included the following:

o assessing the calculation of
the VOBA amortisation factors
which includes assessing the
reasonableness of assumptions
relating to the projected future
gross premium and profit
profile;

o testing the accuracy of the
calculations performed on the
amortisation of VOBA;

* assessing management’s
recoverability assessment of
the VOBA in the connection
with the LAT calculation; and

* assessing whether the
disclosures in relation to
the amortisation of VOBA
are compliant with the
relevant accounting standard
requirements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE

MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Recoverability and amortisation of deferred

acquisition costs

Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial statements

and the accounting policies at note 2(h(iv)).

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2022, the
Group has reported deferred
acquisition costs of HK$5,428
million and amortisation of
the DAC of HK$744 million for
the year. The recoverability
assessment and amortisation of
the DAC is based on the achieved
and projected future premium
and profit profile, which involves
management making assumptions
about future outcomes.

We identified the recoverability
and amortisation of the DAC as
a key audit matter because of
its significance to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements
and the significant degree of
management judgement involved.

ERSRMEESRAT
—T_EER

How the matter was addressed in

our audit

Our audit procedures to assess
the recoverability and amortisation
of the DAC with the involvement
of our internal actuarial specialists
included the following:

o assessing the calculation of
the DAC amortisation factors
which includes assessing
the appropriateness of
assumptions relating to the
projected future deferrable
expenses, future gross
premium and profit profile;

o testing the accuracy of the
calculations performed on the
amortisation of DAG;

assessing management’s
recoverability assessment of
the DAC in the connection with
the LAT calculation; and

* assessing whether the
disclosures in relation to
the amortisation of DAC is
compliant with the relevant
accounting standard
requirements.
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B ZBETRE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE

MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Refer to note 22(a) to the consolidated financial

statements and the accounting policies at note 2(d).

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2022, the
Group has recognised goodwill
of HK$1,826 million for the
acquisition of YF Life Insurance
International Limited (“YF Life”).

There is a risk that the carrying
value of goodwill may not be
recoverable in full through the
future cash flows to be generated
from the relevant cash-generating
unit (“CGU”) to which the goodwill
has been allocated. To assess the
recoverable amount of goodwill,
management calculated the
appraisal value of YF Life as they
considered this is the appropriate
estimation of the recoverable
amount of YF Life.

We identified the impairment
assessment of goodwill as a
key audit matter because of
its significance to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements
and the significant degree
of management judgement
and estimation involved,
particularly in the determination
of the assumptions used in the
calculation of the appraisal value.
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How the matter was addressed in

our audit

Our audit procedures to assess
the recoverability and amortisation
of the DAC with the involvement
of our internal actuarial specialists
included the following:

o assessing the calculation of
the DAC amortisation factors
which includes assessing the
reasonableness of assumptions
relating to the projected future
deferrable expenses, future
gross premium and profit
profile;

o testing the accuracy of the
calculations performed on the
amortisation of DAG;

* assessing management’s
recoverability assessment of
the DAC in the connection with
the LAT calculation; and

* assessing whether the
disclosures in relation to
the amortisation of DAC is
compliant with the relevant
accounting standard
requirements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Other matter

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken
as a whole. The reconciliation between HKFRSs and US
generally accepted accounting principles included in
note 50 is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion,
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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BB A RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSASs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB A RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence
and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lee Lok Man.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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Consolidated Income Statement

mE WK

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B4 Z —EFE - —#+_F=+—HIFEZE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& #5175 )

2022 2021
—E—-= —_ET_——5F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
et FET FETT
Income KA
Premiums and fee income RERERBA 6 9,428,472 8,478,584
Premiums ceded to reinsurer THRE (2,721,432) (2,749,249)
Net premium and fee income RENERHIKAZEEE 6,707,040 5,729,335
Change in unearned revenue REBBRAEEE S
liability (5677,793) (575,893)
Net earned premium and fee WHRERERABAFEE
income 6,129,247 5,158,442
Brokerage commission, interest KemE - FERAF
and other service income H il g 7 U A 26,664 34,809
Subscription, management and R - EHEBNORE
rebate fee income A 6,646 7,855
Consultancy and advisory income &R R Z#H A - -
Net investment (loss)/income BE (BE) WA ERE 7a (287,131) 3,213,404
Overlay adjustment BERE 609,559 (877,429)
Other income H ik z= 7b 2,389,570 2,443,885
Reinsurance commission and profit F1F k& {8 & 5% A 80,909 78,771
Total income N L] 8,955,464 10,554,737
Benefits, losses and expenses Bt BENER
Net policyholders benefit FRE AT 8 (1,306,489) (2,506,126)
Commission and related expenses {A£MiBEE A 9 (1,612,125) (1,813,471)
Deferral and amortisation of EIEREEEBRAR
deferred acquisition costs and WEEKENEEN
value of business acquired 95 7E A0 48 85 1,053,222 1,361,780
Management and other expenses HERHMBE X (1,150,462) (1,207,563)
Change in future policyholder RRREFH A
benefits HNEE 10 (5,872,557) (5,441,211)
Total benefits, losses and expenses #51% - BB 2 A %E (8,888,411) (9,606,591)
Finance costs il & AR 11(c) (162,484) (149,120)
Share of results of associates BENTEENME 20 (7,954) 740
(Loss)/profit before taxation BBiA (BB %R 11 (103,385) 799,766
Tax expenses MIESZH 12 (7,463) (7,101)
(Loss)/profit after taxation BREL& (EE) uF (110,848) 792,665
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Consolidated Income Statement
meEWmEFEX

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z - FE - _—#+ _F=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& # 5 7 )

2022 2021
—_=E-= —E-—&
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt &t FET FET
(Loss)/profit attributable to: THEFEMN (BR) EF
Equity shareholders of the AATERBRR
Company (256,400) 513,414
Non-controlling interests FEERER 145,552 279,251
(110,848) 792,665
(Loss)/earnings per share RATEZRREN
attributable to equity BR (5B BR
shareholders of the Company
Basic (HK$) B (BT 15(a) (0.067) 0.133
Diluted (HK$) 5 (8 T) 15(b) (0.067) 0.133
The notes on pages 146 to 349 form part of these E146E EE3EM T AR GE M BEREN

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEZEkER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B4 Z —EFE - —#+_F=+—HIFEZE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& #5175 )

2022 2021
—_=E-= —E-—&
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
ioka FET FETT
(Loss)/profit for the year after KEEB%Z(BR) RF
taxation ] (110,848) 792,665
Other comprehensive income for 7x 4 £ H #h 2 [ Uk 25
the year
Item that will not be reclassified Heg T TesnsBAEBEN
subsequently to profit or loss: IEH :
Equity investment at fair value URAnrRBESEEHSHF
through other comprehensive AH fih 2 W S B R 1R
income-net movement in fair BE-AnEEREEZEF
value reserve (non-recycling) (A AEmR) - (360)
Items that may be reclassified HEoWRENsBAEBEN
subsequently to profit or loss: IER :
Net movement in the fair FATHMZEKEPER
value reserve during the HAREBEERESEFEEE
year recognised in other
comprehensive income 17 (4,669,119) (879,766)
Net deferred tax impact recognised #EHtt2HEUFE P BINIE
in other comprehensive income LR IE B 28 R AR 37 37,932 =
Net movement in fair value of BERETUAAEEFZ
financial asset at fair value BHEZHTABRZNER
through profit or loss under 5E
overlay adjustment (609,559) 377,429
Exchange differences arising on RENBIEREEEECE
translation of results of foreign HEZE
operations 17 4,532 7,872
Unrealised gain related to EERERESEA#HER WK
amortisation of deferred BEKXEEHEBHRER
acquisition costs and value of Uk =
business acquired 23, 24 1,940,533 526,138
Unrealised loss related to REHAWASEEHEEED
amortisation of unearned revenue KR EIE
liability (1,580,597) (234,060)
— Insurance contract provisions -REEREES 31(iii)
— Investment contract liabilities -RESRERE 32(iii) (109,668) (32,932)
(4,985,946) (235,679)
Total comprehensive income for HXEEZ2HEIKNIFEBEEE
the year (5,096,794) 556,986
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
MEZHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B Z - FE - _—#+ _F=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& # 5 7 )

2022 2021
—_=E-= —E-—&
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt &t FET FET
Total comprehensive income EhEmEm A :
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the AATERBRR
Company (3,740,938) 351,179
Non-controlling interests FFIEBEE (1,355,856) 205,807
(5,096,794) 556,986
The notes on pages 146 to 349 form part of these F146H ERBMORMER AR E M B MRE
financial statements. HRREBD ©
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B ISR R

At 31 December 2022 R =—F=-—F+=-F=1+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& # %7 )

2022 2021
—E—-= —_ET_——5F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
et FET FET
Assets EE
Property and equipment R FZE 18 674,271 711,787
Statutory deposits SEEFER 19 5,142 4,579
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE 37(b) 42,245 44
Tax recoverable ] 3R [B] 4 18 37(a) 3,262 -
Investments in associates REEATNRE 20 132,012 148,819
Goodwill and other intangible BENEMELEE
assets 22 1,909,213 1,910,204
Value of business acquired N £ EE 23 10,418,400 9,325,913
Deferred acquisition costs EIEREBEE BRI 24 5,428,263 3,505,773
Investments RE 25 68,079,238 67,896,304
Advance reinsurance premiums FANBRERE 26 1,373,910 1,277,899
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding RORE ZBRREA T M2
claims 53] 94,267 87,347
Insurance and reinsurance EWRERBREIRMR
receivables 27 8,879,479 6,776,768
Other accounts receivable and HibEEW BRI R BT WA
accrued income 28 119,799 79,531
Other receivables, deposits and HinEWRIE - e RFEMS
prepayments FRIE 29 1,028,699 884,618
Bank balances - trust and RITEABE—EERBIERFE
segregated accounts 30 509,499 779,732
Fixed bank deposits with original REEHRZAR=HAHN
maturity over 3 months IRITEHFR 30 1,624,973 1,060,574
Cash and cash equivalents BHeREBESZEER 30 2,547,901 4,024,475
102,870,573 98,474,367
Liabilities afE
Insurance contract provisions ERiAREES 31 72,041,574 63,121,305
Investment contract liabilities wBESEARE 32 4,853,548 4,714,346
Outstanding claims ROREERR 33 229,402 229,848
Reinsurance premium payables ENBRERE 34 509,182 488,430
Other accounts payable HibFEBRER 35 609,464 844,088
Other payables and accrued Hih B RRIEMERT B X
expenses 36 5,184,901 4,318,281
Tax payable JE (< F5 18 37(a) 5,640 11,632
Financial liabilities at fair value UAREBEFTEEHEEEH
through profit or loss AERHNERERE 38 237,364 376,263
Lease liabilities HEAR 39 233,066 279,608
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBEE 37(b) 1,138,128 1,176,858
Bank borrowings AT A 40 1,393,166 1,381,776
Shareholder’s loan RRE R 41 1,641,077 1,641,077
88,076,512 78,583,512
NET ASSETS BEEFRE 14,794,061 19,890,855
YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mE B BEAARR &R

At 31 December 2022 R=—E_—#F+_H=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 # 5 7 )

2022 2021
—_=E-= —E-—&
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
& FET FET

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARMGEE
Share capital N 42(e) 11,872,683 11,872,683
Reserves #H1E (1,889,764) 1,851,174
9,982,919 13,723,857
Non-controlling interests IR ER 4,811,142 6,166,998
TOTAL EQUITY ERAEE 14,794,061 19,890,855

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 30 March 2023.

Huang Xin
S
Executive Director and Interim Chief Executive Officer

BITEERMAETHAE

The notes on pages 146 to 349 form part of these
financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B4 Z —EFE - —#+_F=+—HIFEZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& #5175 )

2022 2021
—_E2-= —_E-—5F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
KiaE FET FET
(Loss)/profit before taxation MRBLAT (BE) afl (103,385) 799,766
Adjustments for: PR
Net loss/(gain) on financial assets LU AR BETEBHESE T
and financial liabilities at fair AERHNERMEERSRM
value through profit or loss BEZER (W&H) FHE 1,814,325 (152,901)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HEURAABEFEZEAHSE
financial assets at fair value Bt AHMEEKRENE
through other comprehensive BMEEEE (W) FHE
income 121,709 (45,861)
Net loss on disposal of financial HERBHEATTENESR
assets measured at amortised BEEMEIEFEE
cost 11,658 18,130
Dividend and distribution income UARBEERHESF:T
from financial assets at fair value AEEHNEREENRKRE
through profit or loss F 2 BE UL A (349,137) (416,674)
Impairment loss of debt instrument (RN AFTER LA RE
measured at amortised cost Bsf2EBEESET AH i
and fair value through other THRZNEXITABE
comprehensive income g% 356,392 31,420
Impairment loss of securities BREEEUAREBESER
measured at fair value through BT AEENERMEE
profit or loss under overlay ZWEE X
approach 186,696 -
Impairment reversal and disposal ~ JREELEMHEKZ QT
gain of interests in associates IR (750) (50,521)
Depreciation and amortisation HT B A 85 208,674 195,964
Finance costs B & p AN 162,484 149,120
Interest income FE WA (39,243) (12,404)
Equity-settled share-based URREEWURM 2
payment expenses Mx - (7,898)
Effect of shadow accounting on FresttuBEXNER
change in value of business 28 EEREBEEBHRA
acquired, deferred acquisition FARBHBBMASENZE
costs and unearned revenue
liability 250,268 259,146
Share of results of associates B NTEENEE 7,954 (740)
Interest credited to policyholders’ {REZFH AMNERESTFE
deposits 638,521 1,832,747
Effective interest income of BREWNEMFEUWA
investments (39,945) (66,928)
Other movements in investment RENEMPEMMES
and others 3,652 (3)
3,229,873 2,532,363
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mERERER

FoE-C

FHA=+—AILEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& # 5 7 )

2022 2021
—E_-C T —5F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
iokd FET FET
Changes in working capital: EEELEH
(Increase)/decrease in other Hab FEUBR X (1)
accounts receivable oA (40,268) 78,198
Decrease in other receivables, HhEWRIE - RERTEN
deposits and prepayments FRIE D 89,283 42,769
Decrease/(increase) in bank RITEREER D (3B ) —
balances - trust and segregated SERBIRE
accounts 270,233 (31,891)
Decrease in other accounts payable H b f& {5 BR ZUR 4> (234,624) (18,853)
Increase in accrued expenses and JEtER K HiENRIE
other payables 12 0 831,258 1,628,870
Increase in value of business e g A EE G
acquired (1,078,534) (313,342)
Increase in deferred acquisition EEREBE SR ALE M
costs (1,915,221) (1,574,576)
Increase in unearned revenue REHRUR A E(E L N
liabilities 2,266,066 842,884
(Increase)/decrease in advance FEBRERERE (M)
reinsurance premiums A (94,171) 11,688
Increase in reinsurer’s share of RREF ZBRREADEE
outstanding claims 0 (6,794) (31,904)
Increase in insurance and FE U AR = 0 BB 4R B BR 7R 38 0
reinsurance receivables (2,089,708) (3,020,227)
Decrease in policyholders’ deposits REFHE A WFEITURD (2,032,378) (1,966,334)
Increase in future policyholders’ RIFEZEG AL TE
benefits 5,857,596 5,441,211
(Decrease)/increase in outstanding  ARREEF GR 4 ) 10
claims (753) 45,688
Increase in reinsurance premium B BRBREIE M
payables 20,069 166,441
Change in financial liabilities at fair LLA R EE 2B HE &t
value through profit or loss ANEENEREEZEt (51,257) (73,979)
Others Hih (559) (813)
Cash generated from operations REERELE RS 5,020,111 3,758,197

EHSHEBARAT
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B4 Z —EFE - —#+_F=+—HIFEZE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& #5175 )

2022 2021
—_E2-= —_E-—5F
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
iokd FET FET
Operating activities BETH
Cash generated from operations REXBEENRS 5,020,111 3,758,197
Interest received 2 W F 2 9,372 1,006
Interest paid 27 E (10,737) (21,993)
Tax paid: EBIE :
Hong Kong profit tax paid 2FEBFEH (61,031) (50,802)
Overseas tax recovered/(paid) g m () o 367 (1,913)
Net cash generated from KETHELENESTE
operating activities 4,958,082 3,684,495
Investing activities RETED
Payment for purchase of BEYERZELR
property and equipment (86,522) (162,658)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWMERZERE KRS
property and equipment 384 =
Payment for purchase of BEEEEEMSNK
intangible assets - (1,724)
Proceeds from dividend and DARBEFTEAEESEHT
distribution income from ABZNEMEENRE
financial assets at fair value F1 5 B U =
through profit or loss 108,959 222,463
Payment for purchase of financial XU RARBEEEES
assets at fair value through Bt AHEMEABRENE
other comprehensive income MEENBENRE (2,525,578) (7,749,267)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEUAAEBETEHHE
assets at fair value through Bt AHMEEKRENE
other comprehensive income MEEZFEBHIE 1,336,115 5,384,180
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEUAAEETEAES
assets at fair value through Bt ABENERMEEZ
profit or loss Fri8 Fh 18 3,745,899 3,086,351
Payment for purchase of and U AAREEGFTEEES
contribution made to financial B ABENEMEEN
assets at fair value through BEREERE
profit or loss (5,787,812)  (3,053,367)
Increase in fixed bank deposits EEHRZA=EANEE
placed with original maturity SR 1T 7 FUIE 0
over 3 months (562,862) (823,841)
Purchase of amortised cost BEEENARKRE
investments (5,794,460) (4,140,158)
Proceeds from sales, maturities HE - B EEHEERA
and repayments of amortised BREMMBSRIE
cost investments 1,162,452 1,438,977
Payment for issuance of policy BITREERWIR
loans (2,620) (2,625)
Proceeds from maturities and IHNEEREERE
repayments of policy loans FRIE 1,837 1,837
Proceeds from disposal of HEBE ARERERES
interests in associates - 14,447
Payment for the acquisition of WiEEEE R R E TR
interest in an associate - (105,463)
Interest received 2 WH & 23,522 25,111
Net cash used in investing RETHREACESTE
activities (8,380,686) (5,865,737)

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z

— = — —

= — —

FtrZA=+—-HILEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& # 5 7 )

2022 2021
—E_-C T —5F
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
iokd FET FET
Financing activities A& SEE
Payment made for interest XNEEEE-FEHRD
component of lease liabilities (7,250) (2,039)
Payment made for capital THHEEBE-BELXKD
component of lease liabilities (137,106) (146,459)
Payment made for redemption of  BEEI KB A T HIE LR M IE
preference shares by a subsidiary  H{$5% (87,917) (197,108)
Drawdown of bank borrowings IREVRITER - 1,400,000
Repayment of bank borrowings HERTER - (1,555,038)
Interest paid 2R 2 (49,413) (58,083)
Policyholders’ account deposits REFEAZRBANKRES
for insurance and investment EZRFRES
contracts 4,131,922 4,770,747
Policyholders’ account withdrawals {REiFH A ZRBIMIRES
for insurance and investment G 2Bk F iR E
contracts (1,905,299) (2,066,236)
Net cash generated from METBMEEZRSFE
financing activities 1,944,937 2,145,784
Net decrease in cash and ReRELEHEER
cash equivalents W R (1,477,667) (35,458)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—BA—HHNEREREESSE
1 January ERERE] 4,024,475 4,056,734
Effect of foreign exchange NEEZEFHNTE
rate changes 1,093 3,199
Cash and cash equivalents at RT=-B=1+—HMBELR
31 December Re%EER 2,547,901 4,024,475

The notes on pages 146 to 349 form part of these

financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & R R M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 # %) 7)

1 GENERAL INFORMATION 1 —REH
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) E#emERERABA (A28 IR
is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong BEATFMRIL2ERAR  EROES
Kong, the shares of which are listed on The Stock BHERXGMERAR LT - AAFZ
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The registered FMREEMNREBEFE L ITEI8H
office of the Company is Rooms 1803-1806, 18th 18 K/ v18%1803-1806F o

Floor, China Evergrande Centre, 38 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group are long term REB 2T EEZBAFRRERRBER -
assurance business, the provision of securities REESEL - CEREZARKREMN
brokerage, consultancy and advisory services Z HEEE -EIRFRTIEERE
and investment research, wealth management, ERE - AEBFTEMBELBZEEE
employee stock ownership plan administration and BREMFERR T REHFE21 0

principal investment. The principal activities and
other particulars of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 21 to the financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are SEMBBRERUBITEY B AEKR
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), which is RAIZHEEE BREBEBHEN A
the functional currency of the Company, and all BEEYUREL 2 TNIE -

values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEGHEX
(a) Statement of compliance (a) EHBH

These financial statements have been AEHBHRREZBEESTAE
prepared in accordance with all applicable B EBERAN(EBMKRE
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ZR) (BB S FEE B/ E?
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes (BRI BEHEEL) - (FE=:
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial EAYMZRE) BBARGHTE
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting AIFI B BCARMERBD R ERH o
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations R EFEREEFTE(EBHER
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of ZHRERARFZSFLEMKRA) (L
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and MR DWERE - NREBHERM 2
accounting principles generally accepted in FTESTHEBERIWT ©

Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and
revised HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial information.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2022 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries including
the consolidated structured entities (together
referred to as “the Group”) and the Group’s
interests in associates and joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis except that investments
in certain debt and equity securities and
derivative financial instruments are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

ZHSMEMERAR
sSS

B ISR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 FESTEER#E)

(@) &REHGE)

BESMASEM T E TN
RETN(EBYBHREER) - &
LRERGEAEFEMNA AT ENNG
STHIEMAERR AT HERRA -
FREAEEBBENEE R HER
ELEHMTMEBTNERFRSIRE
RS HENEMSTBE
ZE CERAVBHRRARR B
BEER S RMEES

(b) MBHBRRZEREE

BE-ZE-_—_F+=-A=+—H1
FENGEYERRAEAQAM
EHMBAR (GBIAEE]) » B
RAEEMBEBEATMEE R
MRS o

MU T sl 2 S5t BUR TR
BRNE TEBMERESURITE
TMITANRERHEQNABEIR
Sh BRI A 2T EE

EEEFERAUFE(EBYB R
.:.L%EIJ>>EI’JH7I7]‘%#IH%H—:1’E'¢H He
AABRENER UREE BF -
WA HAVREHBERREEN
FIE ~ AR ER - B L L ET A48
ERRERBUIERNEEER
RENBERAASSENZHEME
ZFEHN HERBRTEEER
EEAMBEAMEENESNEER
SENREERFAELDAHHE
o BIRAERTTREABIRMEETBER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 # %) 7)

2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in
note 4.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions, cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

2

TESTHEE)

(b)

(c)

MBHRRZEREE (F)

FEEMAHNEBERREETEE
Bl - MREFHAEANEITRAREE
H-H[ A EEsSEZHER
W A RAE T E A M R 2R H
HEEE  BEFHETNHEN
KRR B o

FREEECRA(EBUBRSE
FEADBSPEHE AN BEREREE

FENFE  URT-—FEEKX
f@%iﬁ&ik@tl‘ﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁﬂﬁ%%w
¥4 0

MEBQRRFERES

MBARAREZASEESNE
8o EAKEREZRE R X mA
EUSymENERIELZER
SPmE - BAEEHBEBAERR
RN R B %S ERET - BIARE
EEZHZERE EFMAEERS
BAELRELIR EZR (FAEH
MHEMSREEN) BEEEF -

RIEXRNIRERZEFFEAE A
ERHRLEEREFRESUB®RERS
BOFFHE - SEA D BIE 28R
REMRERE  UREBRILR
SREENEMRSRGER S
REGEM BRI DBUIRE - £
B A E8 A 5 BT 5| BUR 2 H E R AV IR
A REARBRWHEMAR - BIEE
BARNRIEEBEBERNC HERE

HYER 7 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at their proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial
position depending on the nature of the
liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, no gain or loss is recognised.

EHeMEBERAT
—B-—EEH

B ISR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L{E ¥ %))

2 FEEFHBE@E)
(c) MERRARFERERS (&)

FEREDREEYIFHADNAEE
FEEEENME O RELS  mMA
EEYREHRELESNIFE AR
MM AT EHAEEREELRE
BEMAENSEHEEERNSE
ERNEIMER - B ECESH
ms > AEBAURZZRNELAN
AR EEFENDABEIIFE
MRFE s PG S B A B AT P Bl B E F
B PHIFH B EMIFZRER -

FERESHESRSHBERRKAN
BEEED  BAQFERRRE
RS DRIIR  AEEERZ
FEREBDNGRERERREE
EHEHWHERIMERRRFERES
REZFAAZBAREE NG
BREREZHWERB 2B
R-FERESERAREZER
ROZEHFAAREZHMERE
ENRFEBHERGE BB
MRIEEHEE -

HASERNEL R 2 EEEEHT
SEHRAEHE AMERRER
ZAR Bt REakarmzE
BREFERERSHESFHAE
DRREEESRES  ETSER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L8 # %) 7)

2
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(t)(ii)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included